Spring-Summer 2008

# **STISETSWeb AL**

**User Manual** 



Information in this document is subject to change without notice. Student and school data used herein are fictitious unless otherwise noted.

The contents of this document are the property of STI. This information is intended for users of the STI suite of products only. Reproduction or redistribution of these materials to anyone other than STI customers or users of STI Software is prohibited without prior written consent from STI.

© 2003-2008 Software Technology, Inc. All rights reserved.

Microsoft, Windows, Word and Internet Explorer are registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and other countries.

Other product and company names herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners.

Software Technology, Inc. USA Technology and Research Park 307 University Boulevard North Bldg. IV, Suite 400 Mobile, AL 36688 (800) 844-0884

This document was last modified on June 16, 2008. Any subsequent changes made to the STI applications described herein will be discussed in the release notes that accompany each product's update.

# Contents

Introduction	1
About STISETSWeb	
How STISETSWeb Works	1
System Requirements	2
Logging In	3
Accessing the Program via the Web	
Opening Screen	4
User Desktop	5
Desktop Overview	5
Relationship	5
Student Information	6
Lookup	6
Record of Access	6
Student Progress	7
Services	7
Menu Tree	8
Selecting a Student	
Student Search Criteria	
Student Search Instructions	9
Alert Subscriptions (Teachers)	
Alert Output	
Student Desktop	14
Student Folder	
Basic Tab	14
Other Tab in Student Folder	
Preschool Tab in Student Folder	
Gifted Tab in Student Folder	
Change Case Manager	
Process Manager	
Working in a Process	
Working on a Form	
Student Services Screen	
Completing Forms	
Documents	
STIOffice Info	
Reports (Caseload)	
Student Diagnosis	

Utility	Desktop	38
	About Utility Deskton	38
	Employees	38
	Searching and Modifying Employee Information	
	Code Deskton	
	District Codes & State Codes	41
	Location Type Codes	42
	Diagnosis Type Codes	42
	Service Type Codes	43
	Procedure Type	43
	Procedure Types Cross Reference	44
	Service Frequency Types	44
	Service Type Cross Reference	45
	Assessment Setun	46
	Security Deskton	46
	Grouns	46
	Predefined User Groups List	
	Users Menu	48
	Effective Permissions	
	Edit Permissions	51
	Process Deskton	
	Create Student Folder	
	Caseload Assignment	
	System Files	
	System PhesSystem Phese	
	Delate a Student	
	Mass assign	
	Mass-assign Evit/Archive Studente	
	Lin Archive Students	01
	Critical Student Information	
	Drograda Darioda	05 64
	Alort Tompletes (Administrators and Managers)	04 27
	Sumplemental Date	07
	Supplemental Data	
	Demost a	
	SETS Owers & SETS Owers (Caseland)	
	SETS Query & SETS Query (Caseload)	
	Sunding Reports in SETS Query	
	Sample SETS Query Reports	
	Process Timeline	83
Child	Count Desktop	84
	About Child Count	
	Child Count Error Report	
	Error Codes	
	Exporting Child Count	
	Student List	
	Snapshot Administration.	
	Editing Child Count	
	Edit Student's Snap Shot	
Medic	aid Desktop	92

Student Diagnosis	
Services	
Using Medicaid Desktop and Service Task Entry	
Service Log	
Entering Service Tasks	
Billing Providers	
Medicaid Reports	
Screening / Evaluations	
5	

### Index

107

# Introduction

# About STISETSWeb

STISETSWeb is a browser-based Special Education data tracking system that provides the Special Education professional with a comprehensive system for achieving and maintaining compliance with the state-mandated Special Education procedure for students. All state-approved forms are contained in this software. Since this software is fully integrated with the data from the local school STIOffice program, Special Education personnel may view the following information:

- Student and Guardian demographics
- Entries/Withdrawals
- Attendance
- Discipline
- Schedules
- Grades

STISETSWeb features pre-loaded reports that will track due dates for IEPs, as well as Re-Evaluation reports to determine continued eligibility. Additionally, the STISets *Query tool* is available for custom reporting. The Query tool may be used to filter by Student, Folder and Form Information. Reporting includes both school- and district-wide listings. State Child Count reporting features are also included.

This user manual describes the basic features and processes of STISETSWeb. Users are also advised to consult the *STISETSWeb* Quick Reference Guide, available on the **Documentation** page of the Support Web site at <u>http://support.sti-k12.com/documentation/default.asp</u> (login and password required for access).

## How STISETSWeb Works

Since STISETSWeb is a Web-based application, users at both the school and district levels will access the program via an Internet connection. STIDistrict Sets and the local school installations of STISets Win are no longer used. Those districts using STIHealth should continue to enter medical-related concerns in that program.

The Internet will be used to connect users to their various STISETSWeb *application servers*. No data is stored on the STISETSWeb server. All districts that run STISETSWeb use a service called *STIOffice Integration*. This service is the driving force between STIOffice and STISETSWeb.

STIOffice Integration writes attendance and discipline information from STIOffice to the SQL server. Additionally, STIOffice Integration writes Status, LRE, Exceptionality, and Date Enrolled information from the SQL server back to STIOffice every 60 minutes (the default setting). All data is stored and accessed

from the SQL server via an *ODBC* (*Open DataBase Connectivity*) connection. This allows for changes in Special Education information to be accessed immediately.

# **System Requirements**

The following applications are required to run STISETSWeb for Clients:

- Internet Access
- Microsoft Internet Explorer version IE 5.5 or above, or Mozilla Firefox 1.5
- Printer 18-20 ppm HP Compatible (if available)
- Adobe Acrobat 6.0 or above

The following are the minimal hardware components necessary to run STISETSWeb for Servers:

- Processor-Dual INTEL Pentium 2 GHZ 512 Cache
- RAM- 2GB SDRAM
- Hard Disk 18 GB (SCSI)
- Network Connection 100 MB via Switch
- Internet Access
- Microsoft Internet Explorer version IE5.5 or above, or Mozilla Firefox 1.5
- Operating System Windows 2000/2003 Server with IIS, .NET, ASP.NET & Terminal Services
- Printer 18-20 ppm HP Compatible (if available)
- Adobe Acrobat 6.0 or above

# Logging In

# Accessing the Program via the Web

To access STISETSWeb, users must log in the program using either Microsoft Internet Explorer or the Mozilla Web browser.

• Type the STISETSWeb URL in the address bar of the browser. The login window will appear.

Software Technology, Inc. Special Education Tracking System (SETS)		v. 2.2.035
	• User Name BA • Password ••••• OK	

- Enter User Name and Password and click **OK**.
- If an incorrect User Name or Password is entered, a warning error will appear with the message USER ERROR: Invalid user name and/or password.

The system administrator or manager will assign and manage all user names for the district/school. The administrator may choose to either assign passwords to users or to allow users to create their own passwords. This is a district decision. By default, users with *Administrator* or *Manager* rights will manage security for staff members in their schools.

The version number of the program is listed in the upper right corner of the login window.

Note: Currently, Apple machine users will use the Mozilla Firefox Web browser to utilize STISETSWeb. This free download is available at <u>http://www.mozilla.org</u>.

## **Opening Screen**

The opening screen displays menu options based on an employee's level of access to the program. The opening screen is divided into three sections.

V. 2.2.035	No S	tudent S	Selected							min re	s max ^
Johnny Grillo ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Login Info	Student Nam	I Student e ation Status		Student ID Date of Birth Entry / Withdrawal Date		School Name Age Gender	SIS Statu Grade	S	Loc	ikup	=
Alert Subscriptions Student Desktop Report Desktop	Exceptionalit	y		LEA		LEP	Migrant				
Help <f1></f1>				Record of Access				Student Pro	ogres	s Sei	vices 🗸
Download Adobe Reader	User ⊢Caseloa	Desktoj d	p							min re	s max
	Student Number	Student Name	Relationship	LRE	Special Education Status	Exceptionality	School	DOB	Age	S Race	Gr
	556000000	MAL	Speech Therapist	05-Private School (Parentally Placed)	Active	SLI	ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL	11/01/1994	13	MW	5
	232000000	PRINCESS DIANA	CASE MANAGER	03-79%-40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment	Active	SLD	ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL	06/02/1992	15	FW	5
						Status			_	_	
						Active	Progre	Proces	sses	Fold	er

The three sections of the screen are described as follows:

- The **Menu Tree** on the left of the screen.
  - The Menu Tree houses the links used to access different areas of the program.
  - The information shown here may differ from user to user, due to program security restrictions.
- The **Selected Student** portion at the top of the screen.
  - After a student has been selected, that student's demographic information will be displayed in this area.
  - This information in STISETSWeb.
- The **User Desktop**, in the center of the screen.
  - This will be the user's work area in STISETSWeb.
  - This will be the only area in which data is entered.

Displayed in each of theses sections are three icons:

- <u>min</u>: Click the minimize button to reduce the selected section of the screen.
- **<u>res</u>**: Click the restore button to return the screen to its original view.
- <u>max</u>: Click the maximize button to enlarge the User Desktop window to its maximum size.

Note: Pressing the *F11* key on the keyboard will further maximize the screen. F11 is a toggle key, pressing it again will restore the view.

# **User Desktop**

## **Desktop Overview**

In the STISETSWeb desktop, users will see their caseloads populating the *Student Number*, *Student Name*, *Relationship*, *LRE*, *Special Education Status*, *Exceptionality*, *School*, *DOB*, *Gender*, *Race* and *Grade* fields.

A user's caseload consists of students who are associated by way of Case Management, Special Education Service and/or Related Service. The caseload will appear on the **User Desktop** after the user logs in to the program. Once a User sees the Desktop, they have several ways of viewing children.

<b>V</b> v. 2.2.035	Apple	by, Geo	rgia							min re	smax
System Administrator ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Login Info Select a Student Alert Subscriptions Student Desktop Utilities Desktop	Selected Student Nam Appleby, Get Special Educ Active Homeroom 704 Exceptionalit SLD	I Student– .e orgia ation Status y	Student ID 211111123 Date of Birth Monday, Oct Entry / Withd ENT: 8/12/20 LEA 777	ober 04, 1993 Irawal Date 05 / WD:	School Name Alabama Sets Age 14 Gender F LEP N/A	Middle School (150	5) / / G R R M 1	IS Status ACTIVE rade 3 ace W ligrant WA		ookup	
Report Desktop     Child Count Desktop			1	Record of Access				Student Pro	ogres	s Se	vices
<ul> <li>Medicaid Desktop</li> <li>Sis Desktop</li> </ul>	User	Desktop							[	min re	s max
Help <f1></f1>	Caseloa	d								_	
Download Adobe Reader	Student Number	Student Name	Relationship	LRE	Special	Exceptionality	School	DOB	Age	S Rac	e Gr
					Education Status						
	211111123	Georgia Appleby	CASE MANAGER	01-100%-80% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment	Education Status Active	SLD	Alabama Sets Middle School	10/04/1993	14	FW	8
	211111123	Georgia Appleby DAVID BARRYMORE	CASE MANAGER CASE MANAGER, GIFTED TEACHER	01-100%-80% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment 02-99%-80% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment	Education Status Active Active	SLD	Alabama Sets Middle School ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL	06/08/1997	14	F W	8
	211111123 111111101 800000000	Georgia Appleby DAVID BARRYMORE JAMES BOND	CASE MANAGER CASE MANAGER, GIFTED TEACHER CASE MANAGER	01-100%-80% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment 02-99%-80% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment	Education Status Active Active Active	SLD MR 00	Alabama Sets Middle School ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL	10/04/1993 06/08/1997 02/21/1995	14   10   13	F W F W	8
	211111123 111111101 800000000 511111111	Georgia Appleby DAVID BARRYMORE JAMES BOND Karen Carpenter	CASE MANAGER CASE MANAGER, GIFTED TEACHER CASE MANAGER Speech Therapist	01-100%-80% of the day inside the Gen Ed Environment 02-99%-80% of the day inside the Gen Ed Environment	Education Status Active Active Active Active	SLD MR 00	Alabama Sets Middle School ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL	10/04/1993 06/08/1997 02/21/1995 11/24/1992	14   10   13   15	F W F W	8 6 12
	211111123 111111101 800000000 511111111	Georgia Appleby DAVID BARRYMORE JAMES BOND Karen Carpenter	CASE MANAGER CASE MANAGER, GIFTED TEACHER CASE MANAGER Speech Therapist	01-100%-50% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment 02-99%-80% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment	Education Status Active Active Active Active State	MR 00	Alabama Sets Middle School ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL ALABAMA K- 12 SCHOOL	10/04/1993 06/08/1997 02/21/1995 11/24/1992	14   10   13   15	F W F W	8 6 12

## Relationship

A user's caseload is set up based on the *relationship* that user has to a student. For example: If the user is a student's Case Manager, the designation *Case Manager* will appear in the *Relationship* column for that student. Additional relationships may be defined by an Administrator or Manager in the Utility Desktop. Relationships may be assigned from the **Caseload Assignment** option, outlined in the Utility Desktop.

Note: Students will only have one case manager, but they may have as many other teachers as needed, assigned through Caseload Assignment.

## **Student Information**

Student demographic information (*Name*, *Number*, *School Name*, *SIS Status*, *Date of Birth*, *Age*, *Grade*, *Home Room*, *Entry/Withdrawal Date*, *Gender* and *Race*) is "owned" by STIOffice. This data is not editable within STISETSWeb. It must be modified in the STIOffice. All entered data will then be uploaded to STIDistrict. STISETSWeb data is housed in the same database as STIDistrict.

Note: This information will not be displayed until a specific student is selected.

When a student is selected, the following data fields will pre-populate the student's folder. All of these data fields populate from STIDistrict unless otherwise noted.

- Student Name
- **Student Pictures**: If the school does not use pictures, this area will display as a large *X*.
- Student ID
- School Name and Code
- **SIS** (Student Information System) **Status**: The student's status in STIOffice and District. If a student is marked Inactive or Withdrawn in STIOffice, the SIS status will be Inactive.
- **Special Education Status**: The status of the student within STISETSWeb. This is set within the student folder in STISETSWeb.
- Date of Birth
- Age
- Grade
- Home Room Number
- Entry/Withdrawal Date
- Gender
- Race
- **Exceptionality**: From the student folder within STISETSWeb.
- LEA Number

### Lookup

The **Lookup** button provides quick access to the User Desktop from anywhere in the program. This allows the user to view or work with another student in the caseload.

## **Record of Access**

The **Record of Access** link is located at the middle of the screen between the selected student area and the User Desktop area. Simply click on this link to view and add entries to the electronic record of access. The user may print the record of access here or from the Reports Desktop. STISETSWeb is designed to enter

automatic entries for anyone who selects the student and is not the Case Manager or Gifted teacher for a child.

## **Student Progress**

This link is located under the student demographic information for the selected student and to the right of the Record of Access link. This is how a teacher would access student progress. Administrators can access student progress here or under student desktop. Refer to student desktop for more information on entering student progress.

## Services

The **Services** link provided to the right of the Student Progress link allows the user to <u>view</u> services provided for the selected student. Services are entered on the IEP goal page.

# Menu Tree

## **Selecting a Student**

When the program is opened, the student demographic section of the screen will not be populated with data until a specific student is selected. Once a student has been selected, the student's information will be displayed at the top of the screen.

A student may be selected in one of three ways:

- In the opening screen, the **User Desktop** that houses the teacher's caseload is displayed. To begin work immediately on student forms, double-click on any student's name. This will bring up the selected student's **Process Manager**, which provides immediate access to student processes and forms.
- A second way to locate a caseload student is to click the **Lookup** button on the *Selected Student* area of the screen. This will re-display the list of students on the **User Desktop**.
- Another method of selecting a student is to use the **Select a Student** link on the left side of the screen. To do this:
  - Click on Select a Student. A search screen will appear, allowing the user to search for students based on parameters including *School, Status, Student Number, Last Name, First Name* and students who are *archived only*. Select a Student is reserved by default security setting only to Administrators and Managers.

SETS min res max	ADJUSTED, MA	AL		min res max 🛆
System Administrator ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Login Info Select a Student Alert Subscriptions Utilities Desktop Utilities Desktop	Selected Student     Student Name     ADJUSTED, MAL     Special Education Status     Active     Homeroom     301     Exceptionality     SLi	Student ID S5600000 Date of Birth Tuesday, November 01, 1994 Entry / Withdrawal Date ENT: 8/24/2005 / WD: LEA 777	School Name ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL (123) Age 13 Gender M LEP N/A	SIS Status ACTIVE Grade 5 Race W Migrant N/A
<ul> <li>Report Desktop</li> <li>Child Count Desktop</li> </ul>		Record of Access.		Student Progress Services 🗸
Medicaid Desktop	Select a Studer	nt		min res max
Help <f1> Download Adobe Reader</f1>	School School Ast Name First Name Last Name Stud	dent Number DOB Grade Ge	ntus st Name nder Race Special Education Stat	Student Number Search Select

### Student Search Criteria

• **School**: Click the drop-down arrow and select a school. Most users will only see the schools to which they have security access rights. By

default an Administrator will see all schools; a Manager will see the school connected to his/her employee file.

- **<u>Status</u>**: Click the drop-down arrow and select the type of student status:
  - <u>All</u>: Allows a user to view all students with all Special Ed statuses. This option may be selected if the user might be missing students on the User Desktop
  - **Active**: Search only for students who are Active in the Special Education program. This option is selected by default.
  - **Inactive**: Search only for students who are <u>not</u> currently active in Special Education. This status is used when a student withdraws from school.
  - **Not Eligible**: Search only for students who are not qualified to receive Special Education services
  - **<u>Referred</u>**: Search only for students who are awaiting approval for Special Education services.
- **Student Number**: Enter the Student Number, if known.
- **Last Name**: Enter the student's name or the first few letters of the student's last name. Enter the first letter of the last name to search a larger group of students.
- **First Name**: Enter the student's name or the first few letters of the student's first name. Enter the first letter of the first name to search a larger group of students.
- <u>Archived Only</u>: Check this box to search only for students who are *archived* within STISETSWeb.
- Search Button: Submits search selection.

### **Student Search Instructions**

After entering (or choosing) a value for all applicable fields, click on the **Search** button to locate the student or to view a narrowed list of students to choose from. At least one field must be populated in order to run the search.

To open a student's record, highlight the appropriate student and then click **Select**. Alternately, the user may double-click directly on the student's name.

The student will now be displayed at the top of the screen.

# **Alert Subscriptions (Teachers)**

The Alert Subscriptions feature allows the user who is signed on to the program to set up an alert regarding one student, all students in one school, or all students in the district depending on the user rights. For example, the Case Manager will only be able to set up subscriptions to his/her caseload, where an Administrator will be able to set up Alert Subscriptions for all students in the district.

**Note:** Alert Subscriptions is used by teachers and Alert Template is used by Administrators and Managers.

When setting up an Alert Subscription, the user has the option to **Insert**, **Change** or **Delete**.

- **Insert**: Allows user to insert a new Alert Template.
- **Change**: Allows user to change an existing template.
- **Delete**: Allows user to delete a template.

#### **Subscription Properties**

Subscription Properties web Page Dialog	
Alert	
Reevaluation	
ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL	Student HUDSON ARNOLD
Days Before 10	
Days After 5	
Record will be Added	OK Cancel

The *Subscription Properties* screen will display when the user chooses **Insert** or **Change**.

- <u>Alert</u>: Drop-down box used to select the type of alert. The default list of alert types includes:
  - The Alert Description is the alert seen in the drop-down box.
  - *Time Lapse* is the time that is on the alert before the *Days Before* or *Days After* are entered for the alert.
  - o Date / Field Reference is where the alert information is retrieved.

Alert Description	Time Lapse	Date/Field Reference
Initial Eligibility	60 days from date in folder	Student Folder – "Notice and Consent for Initial Evaluation"
Reevaluation	Same as date in folder	Student Folder – "Next Eligibility Meeting Due By"

Alert Description	Time Lapse	Date/Field Reference
Initial IEP	90 days from date in folder	Student Folder - "Notice and Consent for Initial Evaluation"
Annual Review	Same as date in folder	Student Folder - "IEP to Date"
IEP Due Date	Date in Student Folder	Trigger from 'Next IEP Due Date' in student folder.
Transfer of Rights	N/A	Student's 18 <sup>th</sup> Birthday
Transition	N/A	Student's 16th Birthday
Student Number	N/A	Send alert when student number in SETS does not match student number in District. Triggered by StudentID.SNUM not being found in STU file.
Active Folder and Inactive SIS Status		Triggered by SpEdStatus of 'Active' and StudentID.SN which starts with '*'.
Child Count Snap Shot	[Child Count Date]	Send alert for Administrator to run Child Count Snap Shot. Will be set as a personal reminder in the program.
Transfer of in-state Special Education records	Daily	Send an alert when Special Education records transfer from another LEA successfully or the attempt was halted.

- <u>School</u>: (optional field) Allows the user to choose a specific school for this alert to display. (Note: Schools will only show up if the user has rights to the school.)
- <u>Student</u>: (optional field) Allows the user to choose a specific student for this alert to display.
- **Days Before**: Enter the number of days before the due date at which the alert is to display.
- **Days After**: Enter the number of days after the due date at which the alert is to display.

Example: A Special Education Teacher may set up a Reevaluation alert for a certain student and/or school for 10 days before and 5 days after the due date.

- **Reminders**: Users may set up reminders under the Alert Subscription area.
  - <u>Reminder Message</u>: The message that will display in the Alert area during the time setup for the reminder.
  - <u>Reminder Date</u>: Allows the user to choose a specific date for this reminder to display.
  - <u>Days Before</u>: Enter the number of days before the due date at which the reminder is to display.
  - <u>Days After</u>: How many days after the due date at which the reminder is to display.

🚰 Reminder Properties Web Page Dialog			X
Reminder Properties			1
Reminder Message     Progress Reports	•Reminder Date 09/01/2007		
Days Before 10	Days After 3		
Record will be Added		OK Cancel	

## **Alert Output**

Alerts will display on a grid under the menu tree. The user will be able to expand or collapse the Alerts grid for ease of use.

	N	New Alerts	*
		Date	Message
Child Count Desktop     Medicaid Desktop	I [	10/9/2005	Student(s) Annual Review is Due [MAYA ANGELOU]
<ul> <li>Sis Desktop</li> </ul>		5/20/2006	Student(s) Annual Review is Due [BERNICE JERNIGAN]
Old Alerts >>>		5/26/2006	Student(s) Annual Review is Due [CLARENCE BRUNNER]

- <u>New Alerts</u>: Once alerts have been set up via the Alert Template and/or Alert Subscriptions, users will see the *New Alerts* grid display under the menu tree.
- <u>View Alerts</u>: Double click on a student to view that student's alert(s). The *View Alert* screen with display.

🚰 View Alert Web Page Dialog		2
View Alert Student Name CLARENCE BRUNNER		
Alert Message Student(s) Annual Review is Due		
Acknowledge Alert?		
Record will be Changed	OK Cancel	

- <u>Acknowledge Alert?</u>: This checkbox allows users to acknowledge alerts in the *New Alerts* box. By checking this box for the student's Alert Message, the alert will then move to the *Old Alerts* area and no longer display under New Alerts.
- <u>Old Alerts</u>: Alerts will display here after they have been acknowledged until the delete date. (The delete date is determined on

each Alert when it is set up. Days before and days after will determine how long the Alert will display.).

New Alerts	»
Old Alerts	*
DeleteDate	Message
2/14/2008	Student(s) Annual Review is Due [JENNIFER ARNOLD]

# **Student Desktop**

# **Student Folder**

The student folder houses dates to be monitored for compliance. Many of these fields will auto-populate from forms that are completed in a process.

Student Folder	min res m 🛆
Student Folder	
Edit Student's Snap Shot Child Count Verification Report	ОК
Basic Other Preschool Gifted	

Four tabs are provided for viewing data in the student folder:

- Basic
- Other
- Preschool
- Gifted

#### Saving Folder Information

Click the **OK** button or press the F10 key on the keyboard to save information changed within any folder tab.

Note: It is not necessary to save folder information before going to another tab within the folder.

## **Basic Tab**

Click this tab to display student information pertaining to:

- Special Education Status
- Teacher/Exceptionality/LRE Information
- Misc./Form Information
- Screening Information

#### **Special Education Status**

THE OWNER WATCHING OF		
	- Special Education	Status
	special Education -	Status
	Status	
		1
	Active 💙	
	Date Exited from	1
	Date Exited from	
111	Special Education	Exited from Special Ed Program
	MM/dd/appag	
	mm/dd/yyyy	
	Archive Date	Archive Reason
	MM/dd/appag	
	mm/dd/yyyy	

- **Special Education Status**: Click the drop-down arrow to select a status of *Active, Archived, Exited, Inactive, Not Eligible, Parent Waived FAPE, or Referred.* Remember that the <u>highlighted</u> option will be selected.
  - *Active* refers to all students currently receiving Special Education services.
  - *Archived* refers to students that have been archived by an administrator or manager and are no longer active in STISETSWeb.
  - o Exited refers to students who have left the district.
  - o Inactive refers to all students who have left the district.
  - *Not Eligible* refers to all students who have been determined not eligible for Special Education services.
  - *Parent Waived FAPE* refers to parents who have waived their right to free appropriate public education.
  - *Referred* refers to students who have been referred but not yet determined eligible for Special Education services
- **Date Exited from Special Education**: Enter the date on which the student exited from Special Education.
- **Exited from Special Ed Program**: Select the appropriate Exit Reason from the drop-down box. Because the options are federally mandated to accommodate the Annual Data Report, Alabama Occupational Diploma is included under Received Certificate.
- Archived Date: This is the date the student was archived.
- Archived Reason: This is the reason the student was archived.

#### Teacher/Exceptionality/LRE Information

• **Case Manager**: The name of the teacher who will be responsible for maintaining the selected student's Special Education record will be displayed here.

Note: Changes to the Case Manager must be edited in the Student Desktop by authorized users only.

• <u>Exceptionality</u> (Child Count Field): Select the student's Exceptionality here. Please remember that this drop-list is populated based on the child's age as of the Child Count Date. If the early childhood Exceptionalities cannot be seen, remember that this is based on the child's age.

- <u>**Gifted**</u>: This box should be checked if the student's Secondary Exceptionality is *Gifted*. The software automatically checks this box if Gifted is the student's Primary Exceptionality.
- <u>**Gifted Teacher**</u>: Select the Gifted Service Provider by clicking the **Ellipsis** button to the right of the box. Clicking this icon will allow the user to search for a teacher by School, Last Name or First Name.
- Least Restrictive Environment (Child Count Field): Enter the student's LRE (always a 2-digit number). If 05 is selected, a Secondary LRE will be required. Remember that LRE's are based on a child's age at the time of the Child Count Date set in *System Files/Configuration* tab. If a record is being entered for a 6-year-old and the user can only get LRE's for age 5, change the Child Count Date to the current year. This will change the list of LRE codes to the 6- to 21-year-old codes.
- <u>Secondary LRE</u>: Enter the student's Secondary LRE in the text box provided. As stated above, if the LRE Code is 05, a Secondary LRE is required.
- **Primary Language**: Select the student's primary language from the drop-down box.
- **IDEA**: This field will auto-populate upon selection of any Exceptionality other than Gifted.
- **Deaf/Blind Registry**: Student must have both auditory and visual deficits to be included.

#### Misc. / Form Information

The folder provides a quick means of access to vital form information. Much of this information is pulled from the completed versions of the forms. The screen shot below displays a sample of this screen.

Misc. / Form Information			
Most Recent Date Enrolled In Special Education     In This LEA	IEP Initiation / Duration Dates     IEP T     IEP T	o Date	•Date of Initial IEP Meeting
10/10/2003	06/01/2005 05/3	1/2006	10/10/2004
Date of Most Recent Annual IEP Signature	Next IEP Due Date 02/27/2009	Notice of Proposed Meeting	Notice and Consent for Initial Evaluation
Consent for Re-evaluation	Notice and Consent for Provision of Special Education Services MM/dd/yyyy	•Referral Date 10/10/2004	Parent Rights MM/dd/yyyy

- Most Recent Date Enrolled in Special Education in This LEA (Child Count Field): Enter the most recent date on which the student was enrolled in Special Education at the local education agency. This is the date on which Special Education services were <u>first initiated</u> for the student in the LEA. This field does not auto-populate; the user must manually enter this date.
- **IEP from Date**: This field populates from the completed IEP Profile page or it may be manually entered.
- **IEP to Date**: This field populates from the completed IEP Profile page. The program defaults to the IEP Initiation date plus one year, minus one day, unless a user modifies the date.

- <u>Date of Initial IEP Meeting</u> (Child Count Field for Preschool): This field does not auto-populate from a form. The date should be manually entered by the user.
- **Date of Most Recent Annual IEP Signature**: This field is populated from the date of signature on the completed IEP Signature page or it may be manually entered.
- **Next IEP Due Date**: This field will populate from the IEP Signature field and add one year, minus one day.
- **Notice of Proposed Meeting**: This field populates from the most current completed Notice of Proposed Meeting date or it may be manually entered..
- Notice and Consent for Initial Evaluation: This field does not auto-populate from any forms. The user must manually enter this date.
- <u>Consent for Re-evaluation</u>: This will auto-populate from the signature field on the completed Re-evaluation form or it may be manually entered.
- Notice and Consent for Provision of Special Education <u>Services</u>: This field populates from the completed Notice and Consent for Provision of Special Education Services form or it may be manually entered.
- <u>Referral Date</u> (Child Count Field for Preschool): This field populates from the Completed Referral Form or it may be manually entered.
- **Parent Rights**: This field populates from the completed Parent Rights A form (the date on which the form was signed) or it may be manually entered.

#### Eligibility Information

Eligibility Information			
+Date of Initial Eligibility Determination	Eligible	Date of Eligibility Determination	Next Eligibility Meeting Due By
MM/dd/yyyy	×	07/01/2008	07/01/2011
Eligibility Determined within 60 Days	If NO, Range of	of Days In Excess Reason For Late Eligibility Determination	Transfer of Rights
I v	×		MM/dd/yyyy
Final Completion Date of ALL Evaluation	IS		
07/01/2006			
07/01/2006			

- **Date of Initial Eligibility Determination**: (Child Count Field for Preschool): This is manually entered.
- **<u>Eligible</u>**: This is if the student is eligible or not.
- **Date of Eligibility Determination**: This field auto-populates from the date of signature on the completed Eligibility form.
- **Next Eligibility Meeting Due By**: This field calculates 3 years from the Date of Eligibility field.
- Eligibility Determined within 60 Days: This is a yes/no drop box
- If NO, Range of Days In Excess: Select the number of days in excess from drop box.

- **<u>Reason For Late Eligibility Determination</u>**: Select reason for late eligibility from drop box.
- **Transfer of Rights**: This field will be auto-populated based on the version of the form being used. If a form PRIOR to July 1, 2005 is used, it will pull from the *Completed Signature* page of the IEP. Information on forms used AFTER July 1, 2005 is pulled from the completed *IEP Transitions* page. This field may also be manually entered.
- **Final Completion Date of ALL Evaluations**: This field will autopopulate from Eligibility form only if *InitialEligibility* is checked on the form.

## Other Tab in Student Folder

Procedural safeguards and exit data are listed on this screen. Clicking this option will display student's information pertaining to general information. This information is manually entered.

#### Information

	Basic Other Preschool Gifted		
	Mediation	Formal Complaint	Due Process
	Reason for Non-Participation in Statewide Assessments	Explain Other	Non-Participation Entry Date MM/dd/yyyy
Ξ	No longer eligible for Spec Ed Services	Transfer Student	
	- Services / Other Information		

- <u>Mediation</u>: Select **Requested/Filed** or **Open** in the drop-down box if applicable for the student
- **Formal Complaint**: Select *Requested/Filed* or *Open* in the drop-down box if applicable for the student.
- **Due Process**: Select *Open* or *Requested/Filed* in the drop-down box if applicable for the student.
- <u>Reason for Non-Participation in Statewide Assessments</u>: Drop-box includes: *Absent from School, Medical Excuse, Other* and *Parent Opted Out of Testing* (AHSGE only).
- **Explain Other**: Text field used to explain reason for non-participation in statewide assessments.
- **Non-Participation Entry Date**: Enter the date for Non Participation in Statewide Assessments.
- **No Longer Eligible For Spec Ed Services**: If the student is no longer eligible for Special Education services, enter the date on which the student was ineligible.
- <u>Transfer Student</u>: Select In-State or Out-of-State.

#### Services/Other Information

The following screen displays the Student Services. If Lunch Code information has been entered in STIOffice, it auto-populates this field.

- Services / Other Information		
Jervices / Ouler mornauon		
Medicaid ID #	Permission to Bill Medicaid Lunch Code	SSN
		556-00-0000
Notice and Consent Regarding Payment from Medicaid Benefits Expiration Date		
MM/dd/yyyy		

- **Medicaid ID #**: Enter the Medicaid ID # in the text field.
- **Permission to Bill Medicaid**: Use the checkbox to note whether Medicaid will be billed for students receiving Medicaid billable services.
- **Lunch Code**: Enter the student's lunch code. This information is drawn from STIOffice and will indicate whether the student receives paid, free or reduced lunch.
- **SSN#**: Displays the student's Social Security Number. The option to display the Social Security Number here is control in the System Files when *Show SSN* is selected.
- Notice and Consent Regarding Payment from Medicaid Benefits Expiration date: This date will populate from the Notice and Consent Regarding Payment from Medicaid Benefits form.

#### Screening Information

Screening Information           Hearing Screening Date         Hearing Screening Results           MM/dd/yyyy	Vision Screening Date MM/dd/yyyy	Vision Screening Results	
---	-------------------------------------	--------------------------	--

- <u>Hearing Screening Date</u>: Enter the date of the student's most recent hearing screening. This field does not auto-populate; this data must be manually entered.
- <u>Hearing Screening Results</u>: Click on the drop-down arrow to select Failed or Passed. The highlighted option will be selected. This field does not auto-populate; this data must be manually entered.
- <u>Vision Screening Date</u>: Enter the date of the student's most recent vision screening. This field does not auto-populate; this data must be manually entered.
- <u>Vision Screen Results</u>: Click on the drop-down arrow to select Failed or Passed. The highlighted option will be selected. This field does not auto-populate; this data must be manually entered.

## **Preschool Tab in Student Folder**

This section allows the user to track services provided to preschool students. Entering data in these fields will populate the Preschool Tracking log report.

### **Eligibility Information**

Basic Other Preschool Gifted		
Eligibility Information		
Transitioned from El Program?	Date of 90-day transition Meeting	IEP in place on Third Birthday?
	MM/dd/yyyy	
Implementation date of First IEP developed for Child	Date of Referral Signature	Date of Transition Meeting
MM/dd/yyyy	MM/dd/yyyy	MM/dd/yyyy
Determined Eligible for Services	Eligibility Determined Prior to 3rd Birthday	If NO, Range of Days Eligibility Determined After 3rd Birthday
No 💌	Yes 💙	▼
	Reason for Late (or no) Eligibility Determi	ination
El Source	Family Source	LEA Source
	×	×
Date Letter of Notification from El Received		
05/25/2007		

- <u>**Transitioned from El Program**</u>: Use the checkbox to note whether the child is transitioned from El program.
- **Date of 90-Day Transition Meeting**: Enter the date of the 90-Day Transition Meeting.
- **IEP in Place on Third Birthday**: Use checkbox to note whether the child had an IEP in place on his/her third birthday.
- **Implementation Date of First IEP Developed for Child**: Enter the date of the implementation of the first IEP developed for the child.
- **Date of Referral Signature**: This field can be manually entered or will auto-populate from a <u>completed</u> referral form.
- **Date of Transition Meeting**: This field can be manually entered or will auto-populate from a <u>completed</u> transition form.
- Determined Eligible for Services: Select yes or no for this field.
- Eligibility Determined Prior to 3<sup>rd</sup> Birthday: Select yes or no.
- If NO, Range of Days Eligibility Determined After 3<sup>rd</sup> Birthday: Select days from; 1-15, 16-30, 31-45, 46-60, 60+.
- **<u>El Source</u>**: Select from drop box.
- **Family Source**: Select from drop box.
- **LEA Source**: Select from drop box.
- <u>Date letter of Notification from El Received</u>: This field will autopopulate from El Transition form. (THIS IS REQUIRED FOR THE STUDENT TO SHOW ON THE PRESCHOOL TRACKING LOG.)

#### **IEP** Information

- **IEP developed and implemented by 3rd birthday**: Select yes or no.
  - If NO, range of days IEP developed and implemented after 3rd Birthday: Select days from pick list.

- **El Source**: Select from pick list.
- **Family Source**: Select from pick list.
- **LEA Source**: Select from pick list.

## Gifted Tab in Student Folder

This section allows users to track information pertaining to students who have been referred for consideration into the gifted program or who are receiving gifted services. Fields are manually entered or auto-populate from the completed Eligibility form.

#### Form Information

Basic Other Preschool Gifted			
Form Information			
Gifted Referral Status	Other	Gifted Consent Denied	Gifted Team Decision To Parent
			10/10/2004
Gifted Participation Status	Other	Gifted Referral Date	Gifted Referral Source
		10/10/2099	2ND GRADE CHILD FIND 🔽
Gifted Passed Screening	Gifted Eligible	Gifted Eligibility Date	GEP From Date
	Yes 💙	10/10/2004	10/10/2005
GEP To Date	Tracking log Comments		
10/09/2006			
Characteristics			

- <u>Gifted Referral Status</u>: Users may manually select one of seven options from the drop-down box , based on the student's Referral Status:
  - o Other
  - o Process Complete/Sent
  - o Ready for Screening/Eligibility
  - o Waiting for BRS or Products
  - o Waiting for Consent
  - Waiting for Test
  - Waiting for Vision & Hearing
- <u>Gifted Consent Denied</u>: Check this box to indicate that parental consent for Gifted Services has been denied. This field will auto-populate from the completed gifted Eligibility / Referral forms.
- <u>Gifted Team Decision to Parent</u>: Enter date of Gifted Team Decision.
- <u>Gifted Participation Status</u>: Click the down arrow to select a status of *Active, Inactive* or *Other*. This is a manual entry field.
- <u>Gifted Referral Date</u>: This field will auto-populate from the completed gifted Eligibility / Referral forms or it may be manually entered.
- <u>Gifted Referral Source</u>: This field will auto-populate from the completed gifted Eligibility / Referral forms. Alternately, the user may

select an option from the drop-down box: Second Grade Child Find, Other, Parent or Teacher.

- <u>**Gifted Passed Screening**</u>: This field will auto-populate from the completed gifted Eligibility / Referral forms, or the user may check this box to indicate that the student has passed Gifted Eligibility screening.
- <u>**Gifted Eligible**</u>: This field will auto-populate from the completed gifted Eligibility / Referral forms, or the user may check this box to indicate that the student is eligible for Gifted Services.
- <u>Gifted Eligibility Date</u>: This field will auto-populate from the completed gifted Eligibility / Referral forms or the user may enter the start date on which the student became eligible for Gifted Services.
- <u>GEP from Date</u>: This field is populated from the completed Gifted Education Plan form or the user may enter the ending date of the student's Gifted Education Plan here.
- **<u>GEP to Date</u>**: This field is populated from the completed Gifted Education Plan form or it may be manually entered.
- <u>**Tracking log Comments**</u>: This field is optional and will write to the tracking log report.

#### Characteristics

Points	
✓ 5	
Score	
122	
	Points 5 Score 122

- **Subscale**: This field will auto-populate from the completed Gifted Eligibility Form or the user may select an option from the drop-down box if applicable.
- **Points**: This field will auto-populate from the completed Gifted Eligibility form or it may be manually entered.
- **Instrument**: This field will auto-populate from the completed Eligibility form. The user may also click the down arrow to select the appropriate instrument.
- **Score**: This field will auto-populate from the completed Eligibility form or it may be manually entered.

Γ	Aptitude Tests /	<mark>Adm</mark> i ED EL	i <mark>nistered —</mark> .IGIBLE TEST	S1	\$2	\$3	\$4	<b>S</b> 5	<b>S</b> 6	\$7	<b>S</b> 8	<b>S</b> 9	S10
	Slosson	/	*	143	144	145	156	0	0	0	0	0	0
	WISC III	/	*	97	98	99	100	0	0	0	0	0	0
	WISC IV		~	97	98	99	100	0	0	0	0	0	0

• <u>Aptitude Tests Administered</u>: This field will auto-populate from the completed Gifted Eligibility form or the user may select an item from the drop-down list.

	Performance Indicators	
111	Indicators	Poir
	(A) ACHIEVEMENT	♥ 5
	(AC) ARTISTIC	<b>v</b> 4
	(W) WORK SAMPLES	♥ 5

• **Performance Indicators**: This field will auto-populate from the completed Gifted Eligibility form or the user may select an item from the drop-down list.

## **Change Case Manager**

This option allows the user to change a student's Case Manager. The link may be found under *Student Desktop*.

Change Case Manager		min res max
┌─Select the new Case Manager-		
School Last Name	First Name Search	Select
Teacher Number	First Name	Last Name

- First select a student. Students may be selected via any of the following methods:
  - In the initial *User Desktop* screen that houses the teacher's caseload, double-click on the desired student's name.
  - To locate a student from a specific caseload, click the **Lookup** button on the *Selected Student* area of the screen.
  - Another method of selecting a student is to use the **Select a Student** link on the left side of the screen, if this link is available.
- Now by selecting the **Change Case Manager** menu option, the user may search by *School, Last Name* or *First Name*. Enter the name of the new case manager and click **Search**.
- When the desired employee's name appears, click **Select**.

## **Process Manager**

The **Process Manager** allows the user to add, view and manage a students Special Education process. A *Process* is a group of Special Education forms that must be completed within a specified time period. In order to work on specific forms for a student, the user must first assign an appropriate Process (containing all required forms) to the student.

Perform the following steps to assign a Special Education process to a student:

- If logging in as a teacher, the teacher's Caseload will be displayed onscreen. Select a student by double-clicking on the student's name.
- Users logging in with administrative or manager rights will select a student through the **Select a Student** menu option.

SETS min res max	No S	tudent Se	elected						Į	min res	max	
System Administrator ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Select a Student Alert Subscriptions Student Folder	Student Nam Special Educ Homeroom Exceptionalit	I Student- e ation Status y		Student ID Date of Birth Entry / Withdrawal Date LEA	1	School Name Age Gender LEP	SIS Statu Grade Race Migrant	S	Look	up		
Change Case Manager Process Manager Documents STI Office Info Reports (Caseload) Student Diagnosis Student Sensioner	User – Caseloa	Desktop		Record of Access.	**			Student Pr	ogress	Sen min res	/ices	
Student Progress Utilities Desktop Report Desktop Child Count Desktop	Student Number 556000000	Student Name MAL	Relationship Other	LRE 05-Private School	Special Education Status Active	Exceptionality SLI	School ALABAMA K-12	DOB 11/01/1994	Age S	Race	Gr 5	
<ul> <li>Medicaid Desktop</li> <li>Help <f1></f1></li> </ul>	208	ADJUSTED COUNTY BIBB	CASE MANAGER	(Parentally Placed)	Active		ALABAMA SETSWEB HIGH SCHOOL	11/20/1991	16 F	w	9	Ξ
Download Adobe Reader	213444444 425000000	WILLIAM BRUNNER ROSEMARY CLOONEY	CASE MANAGER CASE MANAGER		Active	00	ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL	08/17/1990	17 N 9 F	w	10	

SETS min res max	ADJUS	TED, MAL						min res max 4	
Johnny Grillo ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Login hfo Select a Student Alert Subscriptions © Student Desktop © Student Desktop	Student Name ADJUSTED, MAL Special Education Active Homeroom 301 Exceptionality SLI	tudent Stode S560 n Status Entry ENT: LEA 777	int ID 00000 7 Birth day, November 01, 1994 / Withdrawal Date 8/24/2005 / WD:	School Na ALABAM Age 13 Gender M LEP N/A	ime A K-12 SCHOOL	. (123) C F N	ACTIVE ACTIVE Srade 5 tace W Migrant N/A	.ookup	
Child Count Desktop			Record of Access				Student Progres	s Services	~
	Process	ses for Selec	ted Student					min res max	
Help <f1> Download Adobe Reader</f1>									
	Insert Nam	ie	Description	Close Date	Open Forms	Missing Forms	Has Annotations	Is Closable	
	Delete Refer	rral Process	Referral Process		0	0			
	Deactivate IEP Pr	rocess	IEP Process		4	0			
	Complete Post-	School Transition	Post-School Transition		1	0			
	Forms Reev	aluation for Eligibility	Reevaluation for Eligibility		1	0			
	Gifter	d Referral through GEP	Gifted Referral Through GEP		0	0			

- This screen displays all of the processes assigned to this student. From this screen, the user may now add, work with or modify a process.
  - Insert: Allows the user to add a new process to a student. If a process is not in the drop-down list after selecting Insert, verify that the process is not already open for the current student. Marking an existing process *Complete* will allow the user to Insert another same name process.

- **Delete**: Allows the user to delete a process from a student. **Delete** may only be selected if no forms have been completed in that process.
- **Deactivate**: A process with open or closed forms may be deactivated. BE CAUTIOUS when using this option. Once a record is deactivated, the procedure cannot be reversed. It also writes an entry to the Record of Access noting that a process has been deactivated.

Note: Only Administrators and Managers have rights to deactivate a process.

- **Complete / Re-Open**: This button may display differently, depending on the process being worked with. **Complete** allows the user to close a completed process, which will then enable the user to create a second instance of a process. **Re-Open** allows a user to return to forms or processes that have been previously completed.
- **Forms**: This button will bring up all forms that are associated with the highlighted process. When this button is selected, the forms will appear on the work area of the screen. Double-clicking on a process also brings up the forms.

### Working in a Process

When working in a process, users will view a list of forms on the left side of the screen. Click on each form that is needed in the process. Below is a sample screen shot of the Referral Process and the forms in that process.



Note the color icons next to each form in the screen shot above. The color icons are a visual for the status of each form. Resting the cursor on the form will also reveal the status of the form.

- <u>Green</u>: Designates a form that is *Open*. The form is in draft status, meaning changes are allowed. All forms except forms sent home for signature will print with a *Draft* watermark until the form is completed.
- <u>Red</u>: Designates a *Completed* form. No changes are allowed except through creating an *Amendment*.
- <u>White</u>: Designates *Not Required for Process Completion* or not opened yet.

- <u>Blue</u>: Designates *Open (Amendment)*. This is a previously completed form that was been Amended.
- <u>Purple</u>: Designates a form that has been amended and completed again.

#### File Menu

- <u>Save Changes F10</u>: Allows user to save the changes made to the form.
- **<u>Reseed Data</u>**: Allows user to update auto-populated data on a form. This is primarily student demographic information. If this information is changed in STIOffice, **Reseed Data** would be used to populate a saved form with the changes.
- **Cancel Changes**: Allows user to cancel the changes made to a form.
- **Complete Form**: Allows user to mark a form as Complete. Required fields must be fully completed before this option is selected. User errors will prompt the user to enter data in required fields before completing the form and fields with errors will be highlighted for easy identification. No changes will be allowed after this option is selected. If changes are needed, the form will have to be Amended.
- **Print to PDF**: Allows the user to preview a form in .PDF format before printing. (Acrobat Reader or another program that can read the .PDF format must be installed on the workstation.)
- **Print Process**: Opens a screen allowing the user to print all or part of the forms in a process. To print multiple forms, select the first form and then press the *Ctrl* key on the keyboard. Hold this key down and select each additional form to be printed.

#### Edit Menu

- **Check Spelling**: Select this option (or press the *F7* key) for spell checking. Check Spelling can be performed in all multi-line text boxes.
- **Show Form Indicators**: Allows users who have visual impairments to view the status of each form in a process.
- <u>View Audit Trail</u>: This feature allows access to the edited/amended versions of a form by date.
- **Exit Form**: Allows user to exit the form. This will display a blank screen.
- <u>Add Form</u>: As forms are needed throughout a process, they may be added by selecting the *Edit* menu and then choosing the **Add Form** option. A list of the forms in the process will be displayed.
- **<u>Remove Form</u>**: Allows user to delete the highlighted form if it is not a required form in the process.
- <u>Move Form</u>: Allows the user to move a form from an incorrect process to the correct process. This can only be done if the form resides in both processes. To move the form, perform the following steps:
  - First, add the correct process for the student.
  - Next, open up the incorrect process and select the form to be moved.

• Go to **Edit** and select **Move Form**. The screen shown below will appear, listing the process to which the form is to be moved.

- Select a Dest	ination Process-					
Name	Description	Close Date	Open Forms	Missing Forms	Has Annotations	ls Closable
Reevaluation for Eligibility	Reevaluation for Eligibility		1	0		
Referral Process	Referral Process		0	0		

o Double-click on the process and the form will be moved.

Note: To move a form from one process to another, the form must exist in both processes. There is an additional rule for moving a form: The form may only be moved if it is less than 30 days old, excluding the months of June, July and August. If the form is over 30 days (excluding those months), a new process must be added and the form must then be recreated.

- <u>Create Amendment</u>: An Amendment may be created to make changes on a completed form.
- <u>Annotate Process</u>: Allows user to record commentary on the forms and process.
- **Save**: This is another way of saving information on the form, besides file/save changes and the *F10* button on the keyboard.

### Working on a Form

Rules have been added to the forms that require the user to complete certain designated fields before a form may be saved or completed. Some data fields on the forms may be typed in, while other data will be entered using *pick lists*. Pick lists are lists of items that may be selected to fill in a field on the form. Some pick lists may have additional items added for user selection. An administrator may add to these open lists by going to **Utilities Desktop | Codes Desktop**.



- Click on the form in the list on the left to begin working on it.
- Forms have *Draft* rules and *Final* (closure) rules. The user may click on any of the errors at the top of the screen and the field referenced in the error will outline in red, indicating which field(s) must have data entered before saving or closing.
- Enter data on the form by clicking the blue text boxes or entering checks next to the appropriate fields.
- A blue (+) *plus* sign in a text box is for a pick list. Just click on the blue (+) *plus* sign and make a selection from the list of options.
- Some forms have blue links on them. Clicking these links will pull up a screen in which the user may **Insert** additional data.

min res ma	LINCOLN, ABRAHAM
min res ma	Reevaluation for Eligibility (1/3/2008) Eligibility Form
	File Edit Save         RE SIZE         Notice Of Propos         Special Education         Notice Of EP Trees         Eligbility Form         EP Portion Page         EP Transition Page         EP Transition Page         EP Transition Page         EP Signature Page         Student Assessa         LEP Acting Hardinger         Check One:         Initial Eligibility
	EP Accommodal         Vision Screening         Hearing Screening           Persons Respont         Date         MM//dd/yyyy         Result
	Click Here for Areas of Assessment
	Final Completion Date of <u>ALL Evaluations</u> : <u>MM/dd/yyyy</u>
	EP Accommodati     Vision Screening     Hearing Screening       Persons Respont Notice of Intert R Notice and Conse     Date     MM/dd/yyyy     Result     Date     MM/dd/yyyy       Click Here for Areas of Assessment     Click Here for Areas of Assessment     Final Completion Date of ALL Evaluations:     MM/dd yyyy       SLD ONLY SECTION - Complete the following:

C Areas of	Assessment Areas	e Webpage Dialog of Assessment				×
Change	Area	Assessment	Date Entered	Score	Other Scores	
Delete	Achievement	(WAT-II)	04/01/2008	00		

- Below is a screen shot sample of the PDF form.
- To print the form, click on the printer icon in the upper left corner of the menu.
- To save the form, click on the disk icon in the upper left menu. Saved forms or reports may be e-mailed as attachments.

201     2	
Because your imput is important to us, we encourage you to make every effort to attend this meeting. You may bring     other people whom you feel will be helpful to you in this process. If your child is transitioning from Early Intervention,     you may request that an invitation be sent to the Early Intervention Program.     My signature below werfies that if you require notice and an explanation of your rights in your native language, the     LEA/agency has accommodated you to ensure your understanding. You are fully protected under the rights addressed in     your copy of the Special Education Right: document. You may access an other copy of your rights, have any questions, or wish to arrange a conference, please contact:     d         (Name)         (Telephone)     d     Signature of Education Agency Official     PARENT - STUDENT     Please check one of the following boxes, sign, date, and return this form to     d         (MUL BE ABLE TO MEET WITH YOU	

## **Student Services Screen**

Student services may be entered on the Goal page of the IEP form. When the user clicks on the link for **Student Services**, the screen shown below will display. Each category at the top of the screen is a tab from which data may be entered or viewed. Data may be entered in all tabs except the *Screening / Evaluations* tab, which is used for Medicaid-billable claims. Screening and Evaluations become Medicaid-billable when an IEP is in place for the student. Click on the *Screening / Evaluations* tab to attach a screening or evaluation to this IEP. After the claim is attached to the IEP, it will be billable. Screenings and Evaluation tasks are entered in a specific menu item.

- This screen was designed so the service for a student only has to be entered one time for this process. A service may be **Attached/Detached** to more than one goal if it applies.
- To attach a service to another goal, just open the goal form and click on the **Service** link on the form. The previously entered service on the screen will be displayed. Select the service and click on the **Attach/Detach** button.

	Stu	dent Se	rvices	5						
Special Education (1)	Supplementary Aids and Services (0)	Program Modifications (0)	Accommo Needed fo Assessm (0)	dations or ents	Related Services (0)	Assisti Techno (0)	ive ology	Support for Personnel (0)	Screening Evaluation (0)	/ s
Enter spe Impairme Services	eech or langua ent, as docum∉	ge services I anted on the	here for s most rec	tudents ent Noti	s whose ce and El	Area of igibility	f Disa / Deci	bility is Sj sion Rega	beech and Inding Spe	Language cial Education
Insert	Service Ty Description	/pe on	Begin Date	End Da	ate Freq	uency	Clos	ed Attac G	hed to 4 oal	ttach/Detach
Delete		0	1/01/2008	04/01/20	108 Week	ly				Attach/Detach

If data is not entered in the *Special Education* tab prior to marking the *goals page* complete, a User Error will display. At least one Special Education service must be entered.

Three options are currently available at the left side of the screen for adding or changing student services:

- **Insert**: Click this button to add a service.
- <u>Change</u>: Select a service and click this button to make changes. If the goals page is in complete status, this button will be a *View* button instead of *Change*. To make changes the form will have to be Amended.
- <u>**Delete**</u>: Delete the selected service. The service must first be detached from all goals before it may be deleted. Click the **Attach/Detach** button to do this.

### Attach/Detach

All services are attached to a goal. This is indicated on the screen above when there is a check in the box in the *Attached to Goal* column. Click on the **Attach/Detach** button on the right to attach or detach this service to the goal.

### Inserting a Service

First select the category for which the service will be entered. In the screen shot sample below the Special Education category has been selected. The red diamonds next to fields in this category indicate that data is required in the field before it can be saved. Each category has different required fields.
– Service Propertie	s (Special E	Education)			
IEP Begin Date		IEP End Date			
06/01/2005		05/31/2006			
Service Type					
		~			
Anticipated Frequency:					
Frequency		<ul> <li>Frequency Type</li> </ul>			
	times		~		
Amount of Time (Minut	es)				
•Beginning Date	<b>*</b>	Ending Date		Location	
MM/dd/yyyy		MM/dd/yyyy			~
Service Details	1				
					~
					~
				ОК	Cancel
Record will be Added					

- **IEP Begin Date**: auto-populates from the IEP profile page.
- **<u>IEP End Date</u>**: auto-populates from the IEP profile page.
- <u>Service Type</u>: This is a drop-down list that is maintained in a code file. Users can add additional codes to this list by going to **Utilities Desktop | Service Types**. This field will only be found on the Special Education and Related Services category tab.

Note: Not all services in this list are Medicaid billable. Please reference section 103 of the Alabama Medicaid manual to see a list of billable services.

- **Frequency**: Enter the number of occurrences within a given time.
- **Frequency Type**: Click the drop-down arrow to select whether the service will take place on a weekly, monthly, daily, yearly, or Other basis.
- <u>Amount of Time (minutes)</u>: This is the amount of time each session will last.
- **Beginning Date**: Enter the beginning date of the service.
- **Ending Date**: Enter the ending date of the service.
- <u>Location</u>: Click the drop-down menu to select a location. This is a user-defined code file. To make additions or changes, go to the User Desktop | Location Code File.
- <u>Service Notes</u>: Enter any relevant information pertaining to services, if applicable.
- Click **OK** when finished.

# **Completing Forms**

Completing a form will remove the *Draft* watermark. To mark a form complete, select the **File** menu and click on **Complete Forms.** This will change the icon next to the form from *green* to *red*.

# **Documents**

On the *Documents* screen, the user may **Insert**, **Change**, **Delete** or **Download** documents that are required at the LEA/School level. These documents are saved on the district server.

Doc	uments		min res max
Insert	File Name	Date Uploaded	Summary
Change	process manager.jpg	07/08/2005	testing
Delete			
Download			

- To add a document that is not already pre-installed with STISETSWeb, click the **Insert** button feature on the **Documents** Page.
- Click **Change** to change an existing document.
- Click **Delete** to delete a document.
- Click **Download** to download a previously uploaded document. Highlight the document and click *Download* to open or save the document.

Fill out the appropriate text fields in order to have the file added and uploaded. Click the **Browse** button to locate the appropriate file/document to be uploaded, and then click **OK**.

Document Properties Date Uploaded 07/08/2005	File Name Browse
Summary	
Notes	
Record will be Added	OK Cancel

Notes may also be entered and saved in the *Notes* field, even without uploading a document.

# **STIOffice Info**

As stated in the overview to this manual, a variety of non-Special Education information is available in STISETSWeb. This up-to-the-minute data is drawn from STIDistrict database and may be viewed by clicking the menu under *STIOffice Information* on the left side of the screen under the *Student Desktop* menu. The following types of data may be viewed in STISETSWeb if entered in STIOffice:

- Attendance
- Discipline
- Entry/Withdrawal
- Schedule
- Grades
- Guardian Information

Bear in mind that all information drawn from STIOffice is *read-only* in STISETSWeb. Any changes to this data must be made from within the STIOffice application. The Enrollment program allows for viewing of real-time attendance, discipline and entry/withdrawal information. An upload must occur in order for the remaining pieces of student information to be updated (schedule, guardian information and grades).

	Attenda	nce			min res max
	Print				
l r	-Daily Attend	lance ——		<b>_</b>	Period Attendance
	Date	Type/Code	Excused/Unexcused		Date Period Type/Code Excused/Unexcused
	08/18/2000	Т	E	714	
	08/25/2000	т	E		
	09/07/2000	P	E		Damanaham
	09/11/2000	P	E		Kemember:
	09/12/2000	P	E		
	09/15/2000	P	E		STIOffice data is
	09/19/2000	т	E		STICINC data is
	09/20/2000	т	E		1 1
	09/21/2000	т	E		reaa-oniv.
	07/31/2003	P	E		
Ш				-	

# **Reports (Caseload)**

STISETSWeb provides many pre-loaded reports. Adobe Acrobat Reader (a free download) is required for report generation. These are teacher reports based on the teacher's relationship to students on his/her caseload.

- Highlight the desired report on the left side of the screen.
- Enter dates or other reporting options that display on the screen for the selected report.
- Click the down arrow to select the *Output Format*.
  - **PDF** brings up Acrobat Reader.

- **RTF** brings up Microsoft Word.
- **XLS** brings up Excel Spreadsheet.
- Click on **Print** to review the report.

Report Desktop (Case	Report Desktop (Caseload)						
Report Name           Activity Log           Annual Goals Progress Report           Eligibility Report All Students           Eligibility Report by Eligibility Date/All Students           Eligibility/IEP Report           General Student Listing           Gifted Teacher Class Roster           Gifted Tracking Log           IEP Report by IEP End Date           Incomplete Annual Goal Progress Data           LRE by Student Name           Mailing Labels           Non-Participation of Students on Statewide		Options         You must have selected a student for this report to run.         • Begining Event Date       • Ending Event Date       Sort Order         03/28/2008       03/28/2008       Event Date       Image: Control of the					
Number of Students Evaluated and Eligible Within 60 Days Preschool Tracking Log							
Processes and Forms Not Marked Complete			~				

#### Notes on Reports

- Information in reports is drawn from the data in the student folder.
- Show common filters button has been added to some reports. Clicking on this button give the user additional filter options.
- The size of the mailing label is the Avery Standard 5160.

# **Student Diagnosis**



- Click **Insert** to add a record for the diagnosis of a child, along with the date on which the child was diagnosed. A service may be entered without a diagnosis. However, a diagnosis must be assigned in order to bill Medicaid.
- Once **Insert** has been selected, the user may search for a diagnosis. The best way to search is to enter only one letter and the system will return many results.

# **Student Services**

Student Services								s max		
Special Education (0)	Supplementary Aids and Services (0)	Program Modifications (0)	Accommodations Needed for Assessments (0)	Related Services (0)	Assistive Technology (0)	Support for Personnel (0)	Screening / Evaluations (0)			
Enter spe most rec	eech or langua ent <u>Notice and</u>	ge services     Eligibility De	here for student cision Regarding	s whose Special E	Area of Disa ducation Se	ability is Sp ervices.	beech and L	anguage Impairment, as	documented or	n the
Insert	Service Ty	ype Descripti	on		Begin Date		End Date	Frequency	Closed	
View Delete										

After a service has been entered on an *Annual Goals* page, this screen may be used to view the existing services for a student.

# **Student Progress**

To enter records of progress for a student, do the following:

- Select the student for whom progress is to be entered.
- Click on the **Student Progress** button located between the **Record** of Access and Service buttons on the main *Select a Student* screen. Student progress may also be entered by expanding the *Student Desktop* link and clicking **Student Progress**.

TISETS min rcs max	BOND, JAMES				min rcs max 🔺
System Administrator ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Select a Student Student Tolder Chapter Ges Menager	- Selected Student Student Name BOND, JAMES Special Education Status Active Homeroom 501 Exceptionality 00	Student ID 80000000 Date of Birth Friday, February 21, 1992 Entry / Withdrawal Date ENT: 7/1/2005 / WD: LEA 777	School Hame ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL (123) Age 15 Gender M	SIS Status ACTIVE Grade 6 Race W	Lookup
Process Manager		Record of Access.	•	Student Pre	ogress Services 👻
<ul> <li>STI Office Info Reports (Caseload)</li> </ul>	Student Folder				<u> </u>
Student Diagnosis Student Services Student Progress Utilities Desktop	Edit Student's Snap Shct	Child Count Verification Report	1		
Child Count Desktop     Medicaid Desktop	Basic Other Preschool Giffed				
	Teacher / Exceptionality Status Active	/ LRE Information Case Manag OAL COMIN Primmed and	er Gifted S Dr.4	Gifted Teacher	

• A grid with a list of the student's goals and progress periods will display.

SETS min res max	BOND,	JAMES	;					min res max 🔺
System Administrator ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Select a Student Student Desktop Student Poluter Change Case Manager	Student Name BOND, JAMES Special Education Active Homeroom 501 Exceptionality 00	Student—	Student ID 830000000 Date of Birth Friday, February 21, 199 Entry / Withdrawal Date ENT: 7/1/2005 / WD: LEA 777	12	School ALABA Age 15 Gender M	Name MA K-12 SCHOOL (123)	SIS Status ACTIVE Grade 6 Race W	Lookup
Process Manager			Record of A	Access			Student Pr	rogress Services 🔻
<ul> <li>STI Office Info Reports (Caseload)</li> </ul>	Studen	t Progre	ess					min res m:
Student Diagnosis Student Services Student Progress Utilities Desktop	Progress Perio Begin Date: 08/	od: Alabama K- 14/2006 End D	12 School Locked 🔲 ate: 09/25/2006					
Report Desktop	IEP Begin Date	IEP End Date	Goal	Progress	Extent	Comments		
<ul> <li>Child Count Desktop</li> <li>Medicaid Desktop</li> </ul>	08/10/2006	08/9/2007	Comparing rational numbers					
 Help <f1></f1>	Progress Perio Begin Date: 09/	od: Alabama K- 26/2006 End D	12 School Locked 🔲 ate: 11/6/2006					
Download Adobe Reader	IEP Begin Date	IEP End Date	Goal	Progress	Extent	Comments		
	08/10/2006	08/9/2007	Comparing rational numbers					
	Progress Perio Begin Date: 11/	od: Alabaam K- 7/2006 End Dat	12 Schol Locked 🔲 te: 12/18/2006					
	IEP Begin Date	IEP End Date	Goal	Progress	Extent	Comments		
	08/10/2006	08/9/2007	Comparing rational numbers					
	Progress Perio Begin Date: 12/	od: Alabama K- 19/2006 End D	12 School Locked 🔲 ate: 01/30/2007					
	IEP Begin Date	IEP End Date	Goal	Progress	Extent	Comments		
	08/10/2006	08/9/2007	Comparing rational numbers					
	Progress Perio Begin Date: 01/	od: Alabama K- 31/2007 End D	12 School Locked 🔲 ate: 03/13/2007					
	IEP Begin Date	IEP End Date	Goal	Progress	Extent	Comments		▼ 
E Done								Local intranet

• Click in the blank gray area next to a goal, under the *Progress* column. A drop-list will appear. Use this drop-list to select the student's progress.

SETS min res max	BOND, JAMES	;			min res max 🔺	
System Administrator ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Select a Student Student Desktop Utilities Desktop Benot Desktop	Selected Student Student Hame BOND, JAMES Special Education Status Active Homeroom 501 Exceptionality 00	Student ID 83000000 Date of Birth Friday, February 21, 1992 Entry / Withdrawal Date EVT: 7/1/2005 / WD: LEA 777	School Hame ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL (123) Age 15 Gender M	SIS Status ACTIVE Grade 6 Race W	ookup	
Child Count Desktop		Record of Access		Student Progres	s Services 👻	
Help <f1> Download Adobe Reader</f1>	Medicaid Desktop  Help <f1> Download Adobe Reader  Progress Period: Alabama K-12 School Locked  Progress Period: Alabama K-12 School Locked</f1>					
	IEP Begin Date: U8/14/2006 End Da	nte: 09/25/2006 Goal Progre	ss Extent Comments			
	08/10/2006 08/9/2007	Comparing rational numbers	•			
	Progress Period: Alabama K-1 Begin Date: 09/26/2006 End Da	12 School Locked  1. Goal 1. Goal 1. Goal 2. Sam	ha			
	IEP Begin Date   IEP End Date	Goal 2. Som 3. Very	litti Extent Comments			
	08/10/2006 08/9/2007	Comparing rational numbers	rog			
	Progress Period: Alabaam K 1 Begin Date: 11/7/2006 End Dat	12 Schol Locked 📕 e: 12/18/2006				

• Click in the blank gray area next to the goal, under the *Extent* column, and select the extent of the progress from the drop-down list.

• To enter comments, click in the gray area under *Comments* and type the text box.

Note: Progress periods must be set up for the correct academic year as well as for the school or the progress entry screen will not display. Progress reports are printed under reports (caseload) or reports under *Report Desktop*.

# **Utility Desktop**

# **About Utility Desktop**

STISETSWeb stores all maintenance features in the **Utility Desktop**. Administrators and managers have selective rights to the Utility Desktop. This section will provide helpful hints and explain how to use the feature.

Click the plus sign by the Utilities Desktop from the menu tree on the left to view all the sub-menus contained in Utilities Desktop.

# **Employees**

Ø				
Emplo	oyees			min res max
Last Name	First Name	Search Include Gen Ed Teachers		
Insert	Feacher Number	Last Name	First Name	
Change				
Delete				
Caseload				
Prov Type				
Import				

### Searching and Modifying Employee Information

To access this menu option, expand the Utilities Desktop.

- Select **Employees** in the Utilities Desktop menu to create records for teachers and other employees involved in Special Education. Several options are available here:
  - **Search**: Allows selection of an existing employee, possibly for changes or deletion. This feature is described in more detail below.
  - **Insert**: Allows addition of employees who are not listed in the teacher file in STIOffice
  - **Change**: Allows the user to edit existing information.
  - **Delete**: Allows the user to remove employee data from the STISETSWeb program.
  - **Caseload**: Allows the user to view an employee's existing caseload.

- **Prov Type**: (Provider Type) Allows the selected employee to be assigned the services that they are credentialed to provide. Medicaid billable and non-billable services may be entered here.
- **Import**: May be used to transfer an employee's demographic data from STIOffice to STISETSWeb. This feature is described in more detail below.

#### Search

The **Search** feature allows selection of an existing employee, possibly for changes or deletion. This would be used for teachers who already have employee records in the program.

- To search for an employee, enter the employee's name and then click **Search**. All or any part of the name entered will return search results.
- The next step is to select the appropriate teacher. On the next screen, the listed employee information may be changed or deleted, and caseloads may be viewed. To change, delete or view caseloads, simply click the corresponding button on the left side of the screen.
- If the *Include Gen Ed Teachers* box is checked, the search will include general education teachers.
- To modify a record for an employee who is already listed in the *Employee / Contracted Worker* pick list, highlight the employee's name in the browse box and click **Change** to the left of the screen. After changes have been made, click **OK** to save.
- To delete an employee, highlight the employee and click the **Delete** button to the left of the screen. Deletion of an employee is not allowed as long as the employee has at least one student on his/her caseload.

#### Importing Employees from STIOffice

The **Import** feature is used to transfer an employee's demographic data from STIOffice to STISETSWeb. Importing Employees is recommended for all permanent staff. For consistency these teachers should be entered in STIOffice prior to adding them to STISETSWeb, if they do not display in a search. If an employee has been manually inserted into STISETSWeb, the employee will not be listed when the user searches the import function.

The import option may be searched in two ways. The *Show All* checkbox differentiates between the two. By default, the *Show All* box is left unchecked, which means that the user is searching only for employees who have not already been imported to STISETSWeb from STIOffice. If the *Show All* box <u>is</u> checked, the user will search for both previously imported employees and employees who have not been imported.

└ Import a Teacher				1
Search Criteria-				
School				
All Schools	-			
Number	Last Name	First Name		
Show All		Count		
		Search		
Teacher Number		Last Name	First Name	

- Click **Import** to add employees who are listed in the teacher file in the STIOffice program.
- **Search** allows selection of an existing employee in the teacher file of the STIOffice program. In other words, these teachers have already had employee records created.
  - To search for an employee, enter the first few letters of the employee's last name and then click *Search*.
  - Click **OK** to add the employee file.

#### Inserting New Employee Records

**Insert** allows addition of employees who are not listed in the teacher file in the STIOffice program.

- Click **Insert** to add a new employee. The *Edit Employee Information* screen will appear.
- Enter employee information in the fields provided. Required fields for new employee records are: *First Name, Last Name,* unique *Teacher Number, Employee Type, School, User Name, Password* and *Security Group.*

Note: Make sure the teacher numbers in STISETSWeb match the teacher numbers in STIOffice.

• Click **OK** to save the record.

🚈 Edit Employee Inform	Edit Employee Information Web Page Dialog					
Edit Employee I	nformation Middle Name	• Last Name				
Teacher Number	Social Sec. #	Date of Birth MM/dd/yyyy				
Employee Type Administrator	Address	City				
State	ZIP Code	Phone Number				
School	•					
User Name	Password	Security Group Administrators				

• Click **Caseload** to view the Caseload assignment for the selected employee.

# **Code Desktop**

The *Code Desktop* houses all the codes used in the software, i.e., all codes displayed in drop-down or pick lists throughout the program.

### **District Codes & State Codes**

To access this menu option, click the plus sign beside **Code Desktop** and then select **District Codes**.

-Categories		Codes f	or Sele	cted Category		
Gategories		00000		cica category		
Name	Description			Code	Name	Description
Charlnstrument	Charlnstrument			0		
CharSubscale	CharSubscale			F	(F) GATES	(F) GATES
Eligibility Assessment	Eligibility Assessment			н	(H) GES	(H) GES
Exceptionality	Exceptionality			0	(O) OTHER	(O) OTHER
ExitReason	Exit Reasons			R	(R) RENZULLI	(R) RENZULLI
Gender	Gender		L .	Т	TABs	TABs

- Most codes cannot be edited, because they are defined by the State. Currently, the only code files under State and District codes that may be edited are:
  - Automatic Test Administered
  - o Charlninstrument
  - o CharSubscale
  - o Eligibility Name of Assessment
  - o Staff Type
  - Language (used in the Folder and various forms);
  - o Perfindicators

- Staff/Student Relationship (used in Caseload Assignment)
- o Test Names
- To add or make changes to these code files, highlight the code category on the left side of the screen then click **Insert | Change | Delete** on the right side of the screen.

Note: Make additions, changes in the **State Code** file first then enter the exact same detail in the **District Code** file.

### **Location Type Codes**

Location Codes are used with Services. This will populate the drop-down list for Service locations.

Loca	Location Types min res ma								
Insert	Name	Description	Expiration Date						
Chapte	Classroom	Classroom							
	Counsellors Office	Counsellors Office							
Delete	Gymnasium Gymnasium								
	Hearing lab	Hearing lab	12/31/2006						
	High School	High School	10/12/2005						
	Resource Room	Resource Room							
	School Bus	School Bus							
	Vision Lab	Vision Lab	12/31/2006						

- Click **Insert** or **Change** to access the following fields:
  - <u>Name</u>: Title of the location
  - <u>Description</u>: The description of this location.
  - <u>Expiration</u>: (optional) The last date on which this location will be used.
- Click **Delete** to remove a selected location.

### **Diagnosis Type Codes**

Select this option to view the various Diagnosis Types available in STISETSWeb. Diagnosis Types are required for Medicaid billing. Codes in the file populate the pick list when entering Student Diagnosis either on the service task screen or under Student Desktop. Click in either the Code or Name fields and then spacebar to display the entire list of codes.

Dia	gnosi	s Types		ľ	in res ma
Code	h Crite	Name Search			
	Code	Name	Description	Expiration Date	Medicaid
	781.3	Abnormal involuntary movements - Lack of coordination	Abnormal involuntary movements - Lack of coordination		
	388.11	Acoustic trauma (explosive) to ear - Otitic blast injury	Acoustic trauma (explosive) to ear - Otitic blast injury		V
	421.9	Acute endocarditis, unspecified	Acute endocarditis, unspecified		~
	12222000				

## Service Type Codes

Select this option to view/edit the various Service Types available in STISETSWeb. Note any service type with the Medicaid box check cannot be edited. These are Medicaid billable services.

				and a second	Meser Contraction
Serv	ice T	ypes		n	nin res max
Search	Criteria	Name			
		Search			
Insert	Code	Name	Description	Expiration	Medicaid
Change	888	888	888	Date	
Delete	1	Audiology Services	Audiology Services		
	24	Behavioral Health Counseling	Behavioral Health Counseling		~
	2	Counseling Services	Counseling Services		
	28	Developmental Diagnostic Assessments	Developmental Diagnostic Assessments		V
	4	Farly Identification and Assessment of Disabilities	Farly Identification and Assessment of Disabilities		

# **Procedure Types**

These codes are used in Medicaid billing. This is a list of the codes that will be in the drop-down list on the service task screen. The code file cannot be edited.

Proc	Procedure Types min_res_max								
Search Criteria Code Name Search									
	Code	Name	Description	Expiration Medicaid					
	90801 SE	90801 SE	Intake/evaluation						
	92506 SE	92506 SE	Evaluation of speech, language, voice, communication, and/or auditory processing						
	92507 SE	92507 SE	Treatment of speech, language, voice, communication, and/or auditory processing disorder; individual						
	92508 SE	92508 SE	Treatment of speech, language, voice, communication, and/or auditory processing disorder; group 2 or more individuals						
	92551 SE	92551 SE	Hearing Screen						
	92552 SE	92552 SE	Pure tone audiometry (threshold); air only						
	92553 SE	92553 SE	Pure tone audiometry (threshold); air and bone						

# **Procedure Type Cross Reference**

In this screen, the user may view the Procedure Types that are associated with the appropriate Service Type.

Cross Reference min res max								
- Ser	vice Types			_				
Code	Name	Description	^	Proce	dure I	ypes		
1	Audiology Services	Audiology Services		Code	Name	Description		
24	Behavioral Health Counseling	Behavioral Health Counseling		92551 SE	92551	Hearing Screen		
2	Counseling Services	Counseling Services			SE			
28	Developmental Diagnostic Assessments	Developmental Diagnostic Assessments		92552 SE	92552 SE	Pure tone audiometry (threshold); air only		
4	Early Identification and Assessment of Disabilities in	Early Identification and Assessment of Disabilities in		92553 SE	92553 SE	Pure tone audiometry (threshold); air and bone		
	C	Children	=	92555 SE	92555 SE	Speech audiometry threshold		
27	Health Aide Services	Health Aide Services		92556 SE	92556	Speech audiometry threshold with speech		
26	Hearing Assessment	Hearing Assessment		10200002	SE	recoginition		
25	Intake/evaluation	Intake/evaluation		92567 SE	92567	Tympanometry (impedance testing)		
5	Medical Services (for	Medical Services (for			SE			
•	evaluation purposes only)	evaluation purposes only)		92592 SE	92592	Hearing aid check; monaural		
6	Occupational Therapy	Occupational Therapy			SE			
15	Orientation and Mobility Services	Services		92593 SE	92593 SE	Hearing aid check; binaural		
7	Parent Counseling and Training	Parent Counseling and Training						
8	Physical Therapy	Physical Therapy					П	

# Service Frequency Types

These codes come preinstalled in the program and cannot be edited. This list of codes is used in the *Services* section of the IEP.

Service Freque	ency Types	min res max
Name	Description	Expiration Date
Daily	Daily	
Monthly	Monthly	
Other	Other	
Weekly	Weekly	
Yearly	Yearly	
	·	

# Service Type Cross Reference

Cross Reference					min re	s
- Service Categories		-	Cross F	Ref.		
Name	Description	1	- Ser	vice Types		
Accommodations Needed for	Accommodations Needed for		Code	Name	Description	^
Assistive Technology	Assistive Technology	11	1	Audiology Services	Audiology Services	
Program Modifications	Program Modifications	11	24	Behavioral Health Counseling	Behavioral Health Counseling	
Polated Services	Delated Services		2	Counseling Services	Counseling Services	
Screening / Evaluations	Screening / Evaluations		28	Developmental Diagnostic Assessments	Developmental Diagnostic Assessments	
Special Education	Special Education		4	Early Identification and	Early Identification and	
Supplementary Aids and Services	Supplementary Aids and Services	Ш		Assessment of Disabilities in	Assessment of Disabilities in	
Support for Personnel	Support for Personnel	Ш		с	Children	
		11	27	Health Aide Services	Health Aide Services	
			26	Hearing Assessment	Hearing Assessment	
			25	Intake/evaluation	Intake/evaluation	
			5	Medical Services (for	Medical Services (for	
		П		evaluation purposes only)	evaluation purposes only)	
		Ш	6	Occupational Therapy	Occupational Therapy	

This feature is used to view and edit Service Types for Service Categories.

• The **Cross Ref.** button will bring up the screen below.

Remaining Se	ervice Types	,		Current Serv	vice Types	
code Name	Description		27	Health Aide Services	Health Aide Services	^
		•	25	Intake/evaluation	Intake/evaluation	
			5	Medical Services (for evaluation purposes only)	Medical Services (for evaluation purposes only)	
			6	Occupational Therapy	Occupational Therapy	
			15	Orientation and Mobility Services	Orientation and Mobility Services	
		Add >>	7	Parent Counseling and Training	Parent Counseling and Training	
		<< Remove	8	Physical Therapy	Physical Therapy	
			9	Psychological Services	Psychological Services	
			10	Recreation	Recreation	
			3	Rehabilitation Counseling Services	Rehabilitation Counseling Services	
			13	School Health Services	School Health Services	
			14	Social Work Services in Schools	Social Work Services in Schools	
			12	Speech/Language	Speech/Language	1

- **Add** will add a service type by highlighting the service on the left side of the screen and then clicking the add button, this will then move it to the right side of the screen.
- **Remove** will remove a service type by highlighting it on the right side of the screen, then clicking the remove button. This will then move it to the left side of the screen.

## **Assessment Setup**

In this screen, the user may add/edit assessment codes for eligibility forms.

Areas of Assessment					min res max
Assessment Type Information	_	Assess	nent Test	Information	
Description		Insert	Code	Description	
Achievement		Change	KTEA-NU	Kaufman Test of Educational Achievement (KTEA-NU)	
Adaptive Behavior Tests	_	Delete	KeyMath-R	KeyMath-R	
Anecdotal Records		- Delete	WIAT-II	Wechsler Individual Achievement Test Second Edition (WIAT-II)	
Articulation Evaluation			WJ III	Woodcock Johnson III Test of Achievement (WJ III)	
Audiological			WRM-R	Woodcock Reading Mastery-R	
Autism Rating Scale					
Behavior					
Behavior Rating Scale					
Clinical Psychological / Psychiatric Reports					
Cognitive					
Comprehensive Language Assessment					
Criterion-Referenced Tests					
Curriculum Based Assessments					
Descrip. of Voice Param.					

- Highlight an assessment area type on the left side of the screen to add/edit an assessment test.
- **Insert** will add an assessment test to the selected assessment area.
- Change will edit an assessment test selected in the box on the right.
- **Delete** will delete an assessment test selected in the box on the right.

# **Security Desktop**

#### Groups

Security roles or groups are defined by the user's level of access to the program. This screen allows viewing of: *Groups*; *Users* in the Groups; and *Group Set-Up*. As a group is highlighted in the left box, the users in the selected role are displayed in the right box. Five groups have been pre-defined within desktop-level access.

# USERS WHO ARE NOT ASSIGNED SECURITY ROLES WILL HAVE NO OPTIONS UPON LOGGING INTO THE PROGRAM.

Groups							
Insert	Name	Description	Members				
Change	Administrators	Administators Group					
onungo	General Ed. Teachers	General Ed. Teachers Group	User Name	Last Name	Fir		
Delete	Managers	Administators Group	ieff	ALLEN	JEF		
Copy	Medicaid	Medicaid Users	Gail	Comins	Ga		
Print	Principal	Principal					
	StateUsers	State Users Group					
	Teachers	Teachers Group					

- **Insert**: To create a new Group, enter the Group *Name* and *Description*.
- **<u>Change</u>**: Highlight the Group to change.
- **<u>Delete</u>**: Delete a Group from the list.

- **Members**: Add or remove users from the highlighted Group.
- **Copy**: Creates a copy of a group. This will be used when a new group is created that will be similar to a pre-existing group. After the group is copied and named, permission can be edited.
- **Print**: Click this button to print the effective permissions for a selected group.
- <u>Members...</u>: This button is used to add employees to the selected group.
  - Select or highlight the group desired.
  - Click on the **Members** button to view remaining members and current members.
  - <u>To add a member</u>: Highlight the name of the employee to add to the selected group and then click the **Add** button.
  - <u>To remove a member</u>: Highlight the name of the employee to remove from the selected group and then click the **Remove** button.
  - Click **OK** to save these changes or click **Cancel** to exit without saving.

### **Predefined User Groups List**

Predefined groups and their default access levels are listed below.

#### Managers – School level access to these areas

- User Desktop: Full Access
- Student Desktop: Full Access
- **<u>Student Folder</u>**: Full Access
- **STIOffice**: Full Access
- **Process Desktop**: Full Access
- Utility Desktop: No Access
- **Report Desktop**: Full Access
- <u>Medicaid Desktop</u>: No Access

#### Teachers – will view their students in these areas

- User Desktop: Full Access
- **<u>Student Desktop</u>**: Full Access
- **<u>Student Folder</u>**: Full Access
- **Process Manager:** Full Access
- **Documents**: Full Access
- **STIOffice**: Full Access
- **Process Desktop**: No Access
- Utility Desktop: No Access

- **<u>Report Desktop</u>**: Query (caseload) only
- <u>Medicaid Desktop</u>: Full Access (when assigned on employee window)

#### **General Education Teachers**

The System Administrator must define the rights for the General Education Teacher Group. This group by default has no rights assigned. The Administrator may assign view-only rights to any of these areas.

- User Desktop: No Access
- <u>Student Desktop</u>: No Access
- <u>Student Folder</u>: No Access
- **STIOffice**: No Access
- **Process Desktop**: No Access
- <u>Utility Desktop</u>: No Access
- **<u>Report Desktop</u>**: No Access
- <u>Medicaid Desktop</u>: No Access

#### **Administrators**

Administrators have access to ALL schools and aspects of the program.

#### State Users

- User Desktop: View Only
- <u>Student Desktop</u>: View Only
- <u>Student Folder</u>: View Only
- **STIOffice**: View Only
- **Process Desktop**: View Only
- <u>Utility Desktop</u>: View Only
- **<u>Report Desktop</u>**: View & Print Only
- <u>Medicaid Desktop</u>: View Only

#### **Medicaid Users**

- User Desktop: Full Access
- <u>Student Desktop</u>: Full Access
- **<u>Report Desktop</u>**: Full Access
- <u>Medicaid Desktop</u>: Full Access

### Users Menu

The *Users* menu is accessed by selecting **Utility Desktop | Security Desktop | Users**. This area of the program is used to create users and assign security roles to them. As each user name is highlighted in the box on the left, the corresponding group(s) will be displayed on the right. <u>REMEMBER</u>: The administrator must assign security groups to users in order to allow access to ANY menus in the program.

Users	min res max 🗠
Search Criteria       Last Name     First Name       gri	Groups         Administrators         General Ed. Teachers         Managers         Medicaid         StateUsers         ✓ Teachers

#### Search

- Use the **Search** option to locate any previously created users. Type the employees name and click **Search**. If the employee has a User File set up, the employee's record will display in the search grid.
- On the right side of the screen are the group(s) to which the selected employee is assigned. This employee is assigned to all groups that are checked. An employee may be assigned to more than one group. When assigning more than one group, keep in mind that the group with the <u>most access</u> to features in the program will be assigned.

#### Insert/Change/Delete

- Click **Insert** to add a new user.
- Click **Change** to change an existing user's User Name and/or Password.
- Click **Delete** to delete a user.

### Adding a New User

• Click **Insert** and then click on the plus sign to display the *Search* screen. Enter the search parameters here.

• Staff Member	• User Name	Password	
	Confirm Password	User must change password at next login	
User cannot change password	Password never expires	Account is disabled	

• The next screen will display a browse box containing all the employees who meet the search criteria. Highlight the name of the desired employee and then click **OK**.

🙆 Staff Lookup Webpage Dialog			×
Staff Lookup Search Criteria School Last Name	Include Gen Ed Teachers	Search	)
Teacher Number	Teacher Name		
		OK Cancel	

- Create a User Name for the staff member, and then assign and confirm a Password. There are additional security options that may be selected. These features are optional:
  - o User must change password at next login.

- o User cannot change password.
- Password never expires.

### **Effective Permissions**

Effective Pe	ermissions	
Object Types	+User	View

This is a tool for viewing individual user permissions. No modifications to permissions are allowed from this menu option. For further details about working with permissions, see the section "Edit Permissions" on page 51.

- **Object Types**: Three different classifications of security in STISETSWeb. Select *Form type, Menu item* or *School*.
- **User**: User whose permissions are to be viewed. Click in the *User* box and a blue plus sign will appear. Click on this plus sign to search for the user.
- <u>View</u>: After the user is selected, click on the **View** button. The screen below will display, showing the Menu Items to which this employee has access, along with the type of access the items.

Effective Permissions			min res m
Search Criteria           Object Types         User           Menu Rem         Gail Comins	w		
Menu Item	Full_Control	Write	Read
Alert Subscriptions			
Alert Templates			
Archive Students			
Assessment Setup			
Attendance			
Billing Providers			
Caseload Assignment			
Change Case Manager			
Change Student Number			

### **Edit Permissions**

Object Types	Groups	Load	Save
Form type	Administrators	-	

This is a tool for locking down and editing permissions for entire groups of users. This will allow the System Administrator to edit the permissions of a particular group more precisely.

#### Modifying an Employee's Effective Permissions

- Select one of three classifications from the *Object Type* drop-down box:
  - **Form Type**: This shows access rights to forms for the selected user.
  - Menu Item: This shows menu option rights for the selected user.
  - **School**: This shows the schools to which the user has access.
- Continue by selecting the *Group* whose permissions are to be edited.
- **Groups**: Group whose permissions are to be viewed or edited.
- After the *Object Type* and *Group* have been selected, click **Load**. A list of the object types will display on the screen.
- To modify permissions, examine the *Object Type* in the far left column. Select the corresponding security access checkbox. An empty checkbox means the user does not have access to the equivalent Security Access option.

Security Object checkbox options include:

- Form Type
  - <u>Full Control</u>: A user will be able to **Amend**, **Complete**, **Save**, **Delete**, **Create** and **Read** the selected forms for students.
  - <u>Amend</u>: User may create an Addendum for a child or modify a completed form.
  - o <u>Complete</u>: User may complete a form.
  - o <u>Save</u>: User may save any changes made in the selected form.
  - o <u>Delete</u>: User may delete the selected form.
  - <u>Create</u>: User may add a new form to a process.
  - o <u>Read</u>: User has view-only rights to forms.
- Menu Item
  - <u>Full Access</u>: User has the ability to access and change all items in the menu tree.
  - <u>Write</u>: User may change data from the menu.
  - <u>Read</u>: User has view-only rights to items such as the folder.
- **Schools**: Lists the schools to which the user has access.
- **Load**: Refreshes the page.
- **Save**: Saves the information changed in the program.

# **Process Desktop**

*Process Desktop* is a resource utility that is used to view the all the processes in the program and the forms assigned to those processes. When a process on the left side of the screen is selected, the forms associated with that process will display in the box on the right side of the screen. *Min, Max, Sequence* and *Days* are also displayed in the right side of the screen.

- <u>Min</u>: The minimal number of times this form must appear within this process. If zero (0) is displayed, the form is optional. If a one (1) is displayed, the form is required for the process.
- <u>Max</u>: The maximum number of times a form may appear within a process. If a one (1) is displayed, then only one instance of the form can be in the process. If (99) is displayed then multiple instance of the form can be <u>added</u>.
- **Sequence**: The order in which the forms are listed within the Process.
- **Days**: The maximum number of days for which a process can be open. If this field is blank, the process has no expiration date.

When the process is selected on the left, then the forms within the process are displayed on the right side (this is view only).

Processes —				—	-Forms in Selected Process				
Name	Pub	Description	Days		Description	Min	Max	Sequence	Days
Behavioral Interv. Plan		Behavioral Interv. Plan Doc.		1	Notice Of Proposed Meeting	1		1	
Doc.					Sp Ed Rights B Under The Individuals With	1		2	
ECEC	$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$	Environmental, Cultural and/or			Disabilities Education Act				
		Economic Concerns			IEP Profile Page	1	1	3	
Gifted Record of	V	Gifted Record of Access			IEP Transition Page	1	1	4	
Access					IEP Annual Goals	1		5	
Gifted Referral	$\checkmark$	Gifted Referral through GEP			IEP Signature Page	1	1	6	
through GEP		Process			Notice Of Intent Regarding Special	0	1	7	
Hearing Screening	$\checkmark$	Hearing Screening			Education Services	-			
IEP Process		IEP Process			Student Assessment	0		8	
Observation		Observation			Access To IEP Documentation	0		9	

# **Create Student Folder**

Creation of a student folder is the <u>first step</u> to working with the Special Education student in STISETSWeb. As forms are completed in the program, the dates are written to the folder. The purpose of the folder is to house the most current information on Special Education students. Reporting is also generated from the information in the Student Folder.

		The solution of the	and a start of the				- Mile	active i	Adiana and a service	- am
Create	Student Fo	older							min res m	nax
School	eria Firs	st Name	Number Assign Cas System Adr	e Manager ninistrator	port					
First Name	Last Name	Student Number	DOB	Grade	Gender	Race	ENT	WD	SIS Status	

#### Creating a Student Folder

#### Select Utilities Desktop | Create Student Folder.

When searching for students, the search screen will display only those students who have no student folder created. This search is on students who have been enrolled in the school system and have been uploaded to the district database.

- **Assign Case Manager**: By default, the person logged in is assigned as the Case Manager. To change the case Manager, follow these steps.
  - To change the default, click in the *Assign Case Manager* field and the blue plus icon will appear near the upper left corner of the *Case Manager* field. Click on the blue plus sign.
  - On the search screen, enter the employee's name and click **Search**.
  - Highlight the name of the desired Case Manager and click **OK**.
- Next search for the student for whom a student folder is to be created. The search may be done by *School, Number, Last Name* or *First Name*. Any or all of these fields may be used for the search.
- Highlight the name of the desired student and then either double-click on the name or click **Import**.

Important Note: If a student is not listed in STIDistrict Workstation, the student will not be listed in the student search. Also, if the student search does not return any results, a folder may already exist for the student.

# **Caseload Assignment**

The purpose of the *Caseload Assignment* section is to create the Special Education relationship(s) between staff members and particular students. The student listed at the top of the screen is the student with whom the user is currently working. A staff member may be associated with a student in multiple ways. This area is used to assign an employee (other than the case manager) to a student to provide a *related service*, or view the student on their case load.

All assignments are performed here except assignment of a Case Manager. Case manager is assigned when the student folder is created or it can be changed by going to the *Student Desktop* under **Change Case Manager**.

	N	
Insert	Staff Name 😽 😽	Relationship
Change	Cinnamon Roll	Psychometrist
g_		
Delete		

#### Assigning Teachers to Students

- First select the student. The student will be displayed at the top of the screen under *Selected Student*.
- Select the *Caseload Assignment* menu from the **Utilities** Desktop.
- Click Insert.
- Click the ellipse button to search for a staff member.
  - Enter the name of the staff member and then click **Search**.
  - Only staff members that have been entered in the *Employee* file will be returned in the search.
  - To include General Education teachers in the search, check the box under *Include Gen Ed Teachers*.
  - Select the staff member from the search results and click **OK**.
- Click the down arrow to select this employee's relationship to the student. Then click **OK** to save.
- Repeat the above steps to assign additional employees to this student.

Note: The types of relationships are pulled from the District Code Categories (Staff-Student Relationship). This is one of the few editable code files. If the relationship is not included in the list, it may be added to this code file. See the section "Code Desktop" on page 41 for information on adding codes.

# **System Files**

The *System Files* menu houses several options that enhance the operation of the software. It is recommended that only one person have access to the System File. This area of the program should be kept under high security. Changes here usually only have to done once a year.

### **Configuration Tab**

System File	es		min res max
on figuration Settings R	itate Office leports Integration		
Scheduled Time	tion Create Gen Ed Caselo	bad	
Synchronize Now			
Synchronize Now -Miscellaneous Show Student SSN V Child Count Date	Settings Inactivity Timeout	Enable Medicaid Communication	

- **<u>SIS Integration</u>**: This checkmark allows the STISETSWeb student demographic data to be updated on a regular basis from the SQL database.
- **Scheduled Time**: The administrator may set a scheduled time each day to synchronize the data for the students in STISETSWeb to have their STIOffice demographic data updated.
  - The user should enter the time as *HH:MM* (A.M or P.M.)
  - <u>For example:</u> If 1:30 A.M. is entered, this will indicate that every morning at 1:30 A.M., the system will refresh the Special Education student information with the latest changes that occur in STIOffice (in correspondence with STIDistrict).

Note: The time entered here must be a time AFTER which the STIDistrict (daisi import) uploads are complete.

• **Create Gen. Ed. Caseload**: Check this box to add all General Education teachers to the STISETSWeb program. General Education teachers should be added if they are to have access to STISETSWeb (specifically to Forms) for all students who are on those teachers' class rosters. The list of teachers is pulled from STIOffice/STIDistrict. After the teachers are imported into STISETSWeb, rights should be assigned to this user group. General Education teachers may log into the program using their assigned STIOffice user names, appended by their school numbers. Keep in mind that adding these teachers to STISETSWeb will also add these teachers' names to all staff or

employee lists in the program. Therefore, wherever there is a list (reports, search, etc.) of staff or employees, the General Education teachers will populate it.

- <u>Synchronize Now</u>: This button is used to manually synchronize the data immediately, rather then waiting until the scheduled one that takes place.
- <u>Show Student SSN</u>: This allows student Social Security Numbers to be hidden or displayed within STISETSWeb. This will display the SSN in the Student Folder and in the Query.
- **Inactivity Timeout**: Inactivity logout time may be set here, up to 15 minutes. After this amount of time has expired with no activity in the program, the user will be automatically logged out.
- <u>Enable Medicaid Communication</u>: Check this box to enable Medicaid billing. This allows the communication to the Medicaid host server. If this box not checked, Medicaid billing information cannot be sent.
- **Child Count Date**: Enter the appropriate Child Count date in this field. Click the **Save Settings** button to save the date in the program. This date is also used to determine the group of LRE codes that are displayed for the student in the student folder (3-5 or 6-21). The program uses the age of the student as of this date to determine the group to display.
- <u>Take Snapshot</u>: This creates a current "picture" of all the students who are in Special Education as of the current date. The snapshot should not be taken until on the Child Count Date.
- **Delete Snapshot**: This option is used to delete a selected snapshot. Please not that once a snapshot is deleted, it cannot be retrieved.

#### **Procedural Hints**

- On or before the first day of school, make sure this date reflects the current year's Child Count Date.
- Do NOT click **Take Snapshot** until this year's Child Count Date.
- Teachers should always be expected to work with the Current folder, except when making corrections to Child Count after a snapshot is taken. This is done in *Edit Student Snapshot* in the student folder.

#### Security Settings Tab

This area is used to maintain passwords for the STISETSWeb users.

System Files			min res
Configuration Security State Reports	Office Integration		
Password Expiration Days	Remembered Passwords	Lockout Minutes	Lockout Threshold

- **Password Expiration Days**: The value entered in this field will set user login passwords to expire in the specified number of days. For example, every 30 to 90 days, the system could require users to change their passwords.
- **Remembered Passwords**: A setting that allows several previously used passwords to be remembered. Users cannot use the same password once their password expires.
- **Lock out Minutes**: This is the number of minutes a user is allowed to attempt to sign on. If a user tries to log on unsuccessfully beyond this amount of time, the user's account will be locked. The user will then have to go to the administrator to unlock the account.
- <u>Lock out Threshold</u>: This is the number of times a user may attempt to log in with an incorrect password. If a user tries to log in unsuccessfully this number of times, the user's account will be locked. The user will then have to go to the administrator to unlock the account.
- <u>Save Security Settings</u>: Click this button to save any data entered on the *Security* tab.

### About Passwords

Passwords are crucial to the security of the Special Education data. Here are some helpful hints on passwords.

- Users should create "strong" passwords. A strong password consists of both letters and numbers, and at least one special character, such as (, @, #, \$, %, ^, & or).
- Easily remembered phrases comprised of some special characters might be used for passwords. For example: *\$mile@me2*, or "Smile at me too".
- A user should never share his or her password or user name with anyone else, especially students. Use a different word or phrase each time a password is changed.
- Passwords must be at least 4 characters and cannot be the word *Pass*.
- When a user suspects that someone has his/her password, it should be changed immediately.
- Users should be cautioned that if their passwords are written down, they should be stored in a secure location.

#### State Reports

This tab is used to approve and send reports to the state department with the next replication of data to the state.

System Files		min res ma
Configuration Settings Reports Integration		
WARNING: Once a State Report	has been approved, unlocking can only	y be performed by SDE.
Name	District Approved	District Approval Date
Child Count	<b>v</b>	9/20/2007 3:00:00 PM
Post School Transition Data		
Post School Transition Data Preschool Tracking Data		
Post School Transition Data Preschool Tracking Data Special Education Supplemental Data		

• To approve a report, check the box next to the report. The date and time will display in the *District Approved Date* column.

Note: Always verify all reports prior to approving these files. This includes the Child Count Error Report and student lists found in the Child Count Desktop and other corresponding reports found in the Reports Desktop. Once checked, the file is locked and is sent to the state with the next replication of data. To unlock an approved report, it will be necessary to contact the SDE.

#### **Office Integration Tab**

This tab is a support tool for Administrators to manage each school's Office Integration service. This tab displays the school, school number, the date on which Office Integration was last run, and the name of the computer hosting the Office Integration service.

System Files						
Configuration	Security Settings	State Office Reports Integration				
Synchronize		School	School #	Last Updated	Host Name	
19		ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL	123	3/31/2006 1:46:56 PM	JEANIEHILL	
		ALABAMA SETS MIDDLE SCHOOL	150	3/31/2006 1:54:41 PM	JEANIEHILL	
		ALABAMA SETSWEB HIGH SCHOOL	152	3/31/2006 1:46:37 PM	JEANIEHILL	

To use the *Office Integration* tab:

- Check the box to the left of the appropriate school.
- Click **Synchronize**. The date of the last update will now be blank.

The next time Office Integration runs, it will refresh all Special Education data to the selected school.

Note: The Office Integration program is essential for displaying real time discipline and attendance data in STISETSWeb. Office Integration writes back to STIOffice; Special Ed. Status, LRE, Exceptionality and Date Enrolled.

# **Student Maintenance**

### **Delete a Student**

Occasionally it becomes necessary to delete a student folder record. For example, a Special Education Folder may have been created by mistake for a student. Deleting a student from the STISETSWeb database does not delete the student from the STIDistrict database or the STIOffice program; the only record deleted is the student's Special Education Folder record.

Delete a Studer	nt		min res	max
Select a Student to D	)elete			
School	Status Active	Student Number		
Last Name	First Name	Search Delete		
First Name	Last Name	Student Number		

- Select **Delete a Student** from the *Utilities Desktop*.
- Students may be searched by *Status, Student Number, Last Name* or *First Name*.
- After the desired search criteria have been entered, click **Search**.
- Highlight the name of the student to be deleted and click the **Delete** button on the screen.
- After deletion, the program will return to the *User Desktop*.

Remember, only the Folder record has been deleted – not the entire student record. Any student who is in the current Child Count Snapshot cannot be deleted. Additionally, any student who has at least one Completed form cannot be deleted.

### Mass-assign

Mass Caseload	Assignment	:						
Find Students School All Schools	Grade			Exceptionality		Having     Having     Staff     Relationship     Searce	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Assign To								
•Staff		Relatio Please	nship e select.	••	~		Assign	
Hide Processed								
Student Number	Student Name	Grade	LRE	Exceptionality	Case N	lanager	Processed	

This utility is used to change relationships from one staff member to another. This should be utilized at the start of school or end of year when students are moving from schools or grades.

**Mass Caseload Assignment** is a two-step process. The user must first decide which students are to be moved from their current teachers. Secondly, the user should decide which teacher would receive these students.

To mass-assign a caseload or relationship, the following steps are necessary:

- In *Find Students*, the user may search by: School, Grade, LRE and /or Exceptionality for the students to be moved.
- Use the advanced search option on the right side of the screen to reassign caseloads. This is an ideal tool for when a teacher's entire caseload is moved to another teacher. In the *Having* search, the user may search for the staff member who is currently serving the student, as well as the relationship that staff member has with the student.
- Once the search criteria have been entered, click the **Search** button. A list of students with the search criteria selected will display.
- Select the student in the list by checking the box next to the student's name.
- In the *Assign To* section, search for the staff member to whom the student(s) will be assigned and select the relationship from the drop-down list.
  - To search the staff member, click on the **Ellipsis** button next to the staff box.
  - Enter the staff members name on the next screen and click **Search**.
  - Highlight the teacher's name in the list and click **OK**.
- The **Hide Processed** checkbox may be used to exclude students who have already been reassigned from the search grid.
- Continue this process until all students have been reassigned to the appropriate staff members.

## **Exit/Archive Students**

This feature is provided to allow users to enter Exit or Archive data on a student who is no longer receiving Special Education services in a district. Since districts are required to retain student files for several years after the student leaves the district; the Exit/Archive feature eliminates the need to perform daily routines on these student records. Students may be Archived so they do not appear in student lists. They may then be Un-archived at a later point to retrieve the student data.

	Archive	e Students								
Fi Sch Las	nd Stude ool All Schools- t Name	ents	~		Stat AL Firs	us L t Name	<b>×</b>	Grade Not in SI	S	
	chive St	tudents						Exit Date	Search	
	Reason		~					MM/dd/yyyy	/	
Arc	hive Reaso	n				_		Archive Dat	e	
		Colored Studen					4- 110	MM/dd/yyy	/	
		selected Stude	nts-Cas	e Ma	nage	r will be set	to "system	Administrati	OK	ר
										_
	Student #	Student Name	Grade	Sex	Sn	Ssn	DOB	SpEd Status	Case Manager	^
	222222229	JOHANN BACH	7	М	150	222-22- 2229	06/06/1991	Active	KEITH CULPEPPER	
	554000000	JOHANN BACH	4	М	123	554-00- 0000	11/23/1994	Active	BILL ANGLIN	
	111111101	DREW BARRYMORE	8	F	123	111-11-	06/08/1994	Active	BILL ANGLIN	

To use this feature, follow these steps:

- First, search the students(s). The search may be performed by *School*, *Status, Grade, Last Name, First Name*, or those students *Not in SIS*. When the search criteria have been entered, click the **Search** button. This will display a list of students at the bottom of the screen. Place a check next to the student(s) to exit/archive.
- To *Archive* a student: Once the name(s) have been checked, type in an Archive reason and enter an Archive date, then click **OK**.
- To *Exit* a student: Once the name(s) have been checked, select an Exit Reason from the drop-down box, enter a Exit date, and then click **OK**.

Note: This will write an Exit or Archive Status, Exit or Archive Reason, and Exit or Archive Date to the student folder. Selected students' Case Managers will be set to System Administrator for all students who are archived.

### **Un-Archive Students**

This utility is used to retrieve students who have been Archived.

Un-A	rchiv	/e Studen	ts							min res max
Find Stu School All Scho	udent	SSele	Grade	al Education	Cas Status	e Mana will be	ager  e set to "Inactive,"	Last Name day	First	Name
Un-Archive		Student #	Student Name	Grade	Sex	Sn	Ssn	DOB	SpEd Status	Case Manager
		210111111	DORIS DAY	1	F	123	210-11-1111	12/12/1996	Archived	System Administrator

To Un-Archive a student:

- First, locate the student(s) to Un-Archive.
  - Search for the student using any of the following criteria *School, Grade, Case Manager, Last Name,* or *First Name.*
  - Click in the checkbox next to the student or click in the checkbox to the right of *Un-archive* to select all students. To select multiple checkboxes, hold down the *Shift* key on the keyboard while checking each applicable box.
- After all boxes have been selected, click the **Un-Archive** button to the right of the search results list.

Note: This will change the status in the student folder to *Inactive*. The student status can be changed by going to the student folder.

### **Critical Student Information**

This utility should only be used by the administrative or managing staff. It is used on occasion when demographic data in STIOffice has been changed and is no longer in synch with the student data in STISETSWeb.

Please read the warning at the top of this screen before continuing with this feature.

#### WARNING:

- Only authorized users should change Student Number and/or School.
- Verify that the Student Number in STIOffice reflects the correct Student Number and School; before changing it in STISETSWeb.
- Modify the Student Number as needed. ONLY USE NUMBERS. Entering any other value may wipe out all data in the *Student Number* field.
- Please contact STI Support at 1-800-844-0884 with any questions regarding the consequences and/or the use of this area of the program.



This utility may be used to change a student's existing Student Number in STISETSWeb to match that in STIOffice and District Workstation. Student Numbers are entered as a numeric combination, no alphabetical or special characters are permitted. These data elements may be changed: *Student Number, School, First Name, Last Name, Social Security Number, Phone Number, Date of Birth, Gender* and *Ethnicity*.

Support Note: Student numbers or any demographic information that does not match what is in STIOffice or District Workstation prevents STIOffice Integration from writing back Special Education Information to STIOffice.

# **Progress Periods**

Before the Progress Report feature is used, *Progress Periods* must be set up and maintained. Progress period templates may be created to accommodate multiple Progress Reporting periods within a district. Progress period templates may be set up for a group of schools and/or for a group of grades within a school or district.

Note: If all schools and grades in the district report progress for the same progress periods, only one *Progress Period Template* will be created each school year.

Progress Period Templates						
-Progress Period Templates	- Templa	te Progress Perio	ds			
Insert Acad Year Name	Insert	Name	Begin Date	End Date	Locked	
Change 2007 ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL Progress Periods	Change	Alabama K-12 School	08/14/2006	09/25/2006		
2007 ALABAMA SETS MIDDLE SCHOOL Progress Periods	Delete	Alabama K-12 School	09/26/2006	11/06/2006		
2008 2007-2008 school year	Delete	Alabaam K-12 Schol	11/07/2006	12/18/2006		
Assign 2006 High		Alabama K-12 School	12/19/2006	01/30/2007		
		Alabama K-12 School	01/31/2007	03/13/2007		
		Alabama K-12 School	03/14/2007	05/21/2007		
l		Alabama K-12 School	03/14/2007	05/21/2007		ĺ

The first step is to create a progress period template.

- Click **Insert** on the left side of the screen (under *Progress Period Templates*) to create a new template.
- Enter a description for the template in the *Name* field. The name will distinguish each group of reporting periods in the district. So if high schools report progress at a different period, the elementary schools will be given a unique name to distinguish the two.
- The *Academic Year* will default to the current ending school year. Example: For the 2008/2009 school year, the Academic Year will default to 2009.
- Click **OK** to save the template.

Progress Period Template		
•Name	Acad Year	
High School	2008	]
Record will be Added		OK Cancel

• To modify an existing progress template, click on the appropriate template to select it and then click the **Change** button.

Progress Period Templates					
Progres	ss Perio	od Templates			
Insert	Acad Year	Name			
Change	2007	ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL Progress Periods	1		
Delete	2007	ALABAMA SETS MIDDLE SCHOOL Progress Periods			
Assign	2008	School Progress Periods			

• To remove a progress template, click on the template to select it and then click **Delete**.

Support Note: DO NOT delete or change templates from the previous year to set up for the current or upcoming year. A new template must be created and the new progress periods must be inserted.

The second step is to assign the schools and/or grades to the template.

• Click on the applicable progress period template to select it and then click the **Assign** button.

-Assign Progress Period	d Template	s to Scho	ols
Progress Period Template School Progress Periods			ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL
Name	Begin Date	End Date	Grade 7
1st Nine WKS, Progress Period	08/01/2007	10/01/2007	Grade 8
2nd Nine WKS.	10/02/2007	12/02/2007	Grade 5
3rd Nine WKS.	01/03/2008	03/01/2008	Grade 6
	· · · · ·		Grade 11
			Grade 12
			Grade 9
			Grade 10
			Grade PK-4
			Grade K
			Grade PK-2
			Grade PK-3
			Grade 3
			Grade 4
			Grade 1
			Grade 2
			ALABAMA SETS MIDDLE SCHOOL
			Grade 7
			Grade 8
Record cannot be edited			OK Cancel

- Choose each school or each grade level within that school that is to be added to the template. Note that when the checkbox next to the school name is clicked, all grade levels within that school will be selected by default. Click on any checked grade level to de-select it when not needed.
- Click **OK** to save the selections.

The third step is to set up the *Progress Periods* for the template.

- Highlight the Progress Period Template that was created.
- Click **Insert** (on the right side of the screen under *Template Progress Periods*). See first screen shot this section.

-Progress Period-		
♦Name	Locked	
♦Begin Date	+End Date	
MM/dd/yyyy	MM/dd/yyyy	
Record will be Added		OK Cancel

• In the *Name* field, enter a description for the progress period. Examples: 1<sup>st</sup> Nine Weeks, 2<sup>nd</sup> Nine Weeks, Grading Period 1, Grading Period 2, etc.
- Enter the beginning and ending dates for the progress period.
- The *Locked* checkbox may be used when the user wishes to lock-down the grading period. This will secure the progress reporting data. This feature may be used to lock all progress reporting periods except the current one, to help avoid data entry mistakes.
- Click **OK** to save the data entered.

#### Alert Templates (Administrators and Managers)

Alert Templates will be set up by Administrators or Managers. These templates may be set up for schools and/or staff types.

Note: The *Alert Subscriptions* feature is used by teachers; the *Alert Template* is used by Administrators and Managers.

When setting up an Alert Template, the user may **Insert**, **Change** or **Delete**.

- **Insert**: Creates a new Alert Template.
- **Change**: Used to change an existing template.
- **Delete**: Used to delete a template.

#### **Template Properties**

This screen will appear if the user chooses to **Insert** or **Change** a template.

🖉 Template Properties Web Page Dialog		×
← Template Properties ←		
School	Staff Type Special Education Teacher	
Days Before 7	Days After 3	
Record will be Added	OK	

- <u>Alert</u>: Drop-down box used to choose the Alert Type. Default list of Alert Types:
  - The Alert Description is the Alert seen in the drop-down box.
  - *Time lapse* is the time on the Alert before the *Days Before* or *Days After* is even entered for the Alert.
  - *Date/Field Reference* indicates the location where the Alert information is retrieved.

Alert	Time Lapse	Date/Field Reference
Initial Eligibility	60 days from date in folder	Student Folder – "Notice and Consent for Initial Evaluation"

Alert	Time Lapse	Date/Field Reference
Reevaluation	Same as date in folder	Student Folder – "Next Eligibility Meeting Due By"
Initial IEP	90 days from date in folder	Student Folder - "Notice and Consent for Initial Evaluation"
Annual Review	Same as date in folder	Student Folder - "IEP to Date"
IEP Due Date	Date in Student Folder	Trigger from 'Next IEP Due Date' in student folder.
Transfer of Rights	N/A	Student's 18 <sup>th</sup> Birthday
Transition	N/A	Student's 16th Birthday
Student Number	N/A	Send alert when student number in SETS does not match student number in District. Triggered by StudentID.SNUM not being found in STU file.
Active Folder and Inactive SIS Status		Triggered by SpEdStatus of 'Active' and StudentID.SN which starts with '*'.
Child Count Snap Shot	[Child Count Date]	Send alert for Administrator to run Child Count Snap Shot. Will be set as a personal reminder in the program.
Transfer of in-state Special Education records	Daily	Send an alert when Special Education records transfer from another LEA successfully or the attempt was halted.

- **School**: Allows the user to choose a specific school for which this alert is to display. If left blank, the alert will show for all schools.
- **<u>Staff Type</u>**: Allows the user to choose a specific staff type for whom this alert is to display. This staff type is from the staff type that is set up in the Employee Information area, <u>NOT</u> the user group.
- **Days Before**: Indicate the number of days before the due date on which the alert is to display.
- **Days After**: Indicate the number of days after the due date on which the alert is to display.

Example: A Special Education Manager or Administrator may set up a Reevaluation alert for all Special Education Teachers to receive 7 days before and 3 days after the due date.

## **Supplemental Data**

Special Education Supplemental Data Summary for 200						
Teachers ·	Projected Need					
Collaborative Special Education	Hearing Impaired					
0	0					
Speech / Language Impaired	Early Childhood Special Ed					
0	0					
Visual Impairment	Gifted					
0	0					
Support Stat	ff - Projected Need					
Support Star	Gard Georgetianal Theoremist Assist					
	Cert Occupational Therapist Assist					
Physical Therapist	Clerk					
0	0					
Paraprofessional	Audiologist					
0	0					
Supervisor	Interpreter					
0	0					
	Psychometrist					
	0					
	Save					

This area is used to enter supplemental data for reporting purposes, when requested by the SDE.

## **Report Desktop**

The *Report Desktop* offers reporting features using several reports that have been created for the users or Sets Query were the user can create their own reports. The reports run from the Report Desktop will include data for all schools and students unless other wise selected. Whereas the *Reports* option under Student Desktop may only be used for reporting on students in a particular teacher's caseload. Many reports come preloaded in Report Desktop.

## Reports

To generate a report:

- Highlight the desired report on the left side of the screen.
- If appropriate, select the reporting options. The following reporting options may be available.
  - Many reports provide the option of running the report by *School*.
     Simply select the school for which the report is to be run. In some cases, the user may select **All Schools** from the drop-down list to include them in the report. If the schools display in a text box, the user may select all by clicking on the first school listed, holding the *Shift* key and then selecting the last school listed. To select

more than one but less than all schools, click on the first school, hold the *Ctrl* key, and select each school desired.

- Some reports offer a date or date range for which the report may be run.
- In some instances, the user may include only *Active* students (if a box is available to check).
- Other reporting options are: *Case Manager, Staff, Sort Orders* and *Page Breaks*. Some or all of these options may be found when different reports are selected from the list of reports.
- Some reports have a **Show Common Filter** button that, when clicked, will offer additional filtering by *Status, Race, Gender, Exceptionality, LRE, Age* and *Grade*.
- *Output Format* may be used to open the report in other formats. Adobe Reader (which creates the report in .PDF format) is chosen by default.
  - **PDF** brings up Acrobat Reader.
  - o **RTF** brings up Microsoft Word.
  - **XLS** brings up Excel Spreadsheet.
- Click **Print** to preview the report.



## SETS Query & SETS Query (Caseload)

**SETS Query** and **SETS Query (Caseload)** are designed to allow Administrators, Managers and Teachers to build reports based on teacher caseloads, school-wide listings or district-wide listings. SETS Query (Caseload) is designed to build user-defined reports based ONLY on an employee's caseload. An employee who has been assigned a Security Role of *Teacher* will use this report option after logging in. Following the steps in this guide will allow Administrators, Managers or Teachers to build custom reports based on the selection of specific data elements. Administrators and Managers locate this component by selecting the **Report Desktop** and then choosing **SETS Query**. Teachers locate this component by selecting **Report Desktop** and then choosing **SETS Query (Caseload)**. While the query is being built, a sample of the report will display at the bottom of the *SETS Query* screen. This allows users to view the report layout. Deselecting and reselecting the data elements for the report can change the report layout view in the sample.

#### Report Options in the Header of the SETS Query Screen

• **School**: Use the drop-down list to choose a particular school for which a report is being built. The user may also select the *All Schools* option to build a report for all schools in the database. The school list is in alphabetical order, so the first school will display in the list when entering this screen.

Note: Teachers and Managers will only have access to the schools to which they have been assigned.

SETS Query School: ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL	Report Title:	Oxml⊙htm Otxt	abiyod	Run Counts?Report Name	min res max
Student: SNUM SNUM Fname Addr1 Addr1 City City State	Folder:	olled		Form:         Form:           Field:            Form:            Form:            Form:            Field:            Form:            Field:            Form:	
Results: [Top 5 Results Max]           Last Name First Name SNUM         Li           GUMP         FOREST         81111111           WOOD         ELIJAH         11111112           ANGELOU         MAYA         410000000           CLARK         LOIS         419000000           CLOONEY         ROSEMARY 425000000	1E.Name -99%-80% of the day Inside the Gen -Less than 40% of the day Inside the	Ed Environment Gen Ed Environment			

• **<u>Report Title</u>**: Enter a custom report title in the space provided.

- <u>Xml, Htm, Txt</u>: Choose the format in which the report will be generated.
  - **Xml**: Used primarily for trouble-shooting purposes.



• <u>**Htm**</u>: This is the default format used for "active" reports. When student information is displayed in the report preview screen, the user may double-click on a student to bring up the student's folder for editing or viewing.

NUM	Last Name	First Name	Primary.EXC.Code	LRE.Name
1900000	CLARK	LOIS	MR	04-Less than 40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
15555555	AGUILARA	CHRISTINA	ED	04-Less than 40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
4444444	ARNOLD	HUDSON	MR	04-Less than 40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
11111111	BOGART	HUMPHREY	MR	04-Less than 40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
99999999	CHARLES	RAY	ОНІ	03-79%-40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
22222225	BATEMAN	JASON	ED	04-Less than 40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
33333339	CAREY	DREW	ED	04-Less than 40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
66666666	DUCK	DONALD	MD	04-Less than 40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
9100000	ASTAIRE	FRED	MR	04-Less than 40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment
61000000	BUSH	LAURA	MD	03-79%-40% of the day Inside the Gen Ed Environment

o **<u>Txt</u>**: Text Format

SNUM	Last Name	First Name	EXC.Code
410000000	ANGELOU	MAYA	SLD
111111111	AARON	MICHAEL	SLD
215555555	AGUILARA	CHRISTINA	ED
555555555	ARNOLD	LUKE	SLD
556000000	ADJUSTED	MAL	ED .
313000000	BALL	LUCILLE	MD
322222222	NOTH	CHRIS	SLD
211111116	AFFLECK	BEN	OHT

• **Totals Only**: Check this box to generate a report that lists totals only.

- <u>Active/Referred Only</u>: Check this box to generate a report including Active and Referred students only. If left unchecked, the report will include Inactive students as well.
- **<u>Archived</u>**: Check this box to generate a report for archived students.
- **<u>Run</u>**: Click this button to run the report.
- **Counts**: Check this box to display counts at the bottom of the screen, based on the criteria selected.
- **<u>Report Name</u>**: This text box displays the name of a saved or loaded report.
- **Load**: Click here to load a previously saved report.
- **Save**: Select this option to save the report. Queries created can be saved as public or private reports. A public report can be used by all Sets users. An administrator or manager may create a query to be used by all teachers if saved as a public report. When the teachers load and run the query they will see a list of the students assigned to them in the report.
- **New**: Select this option to clear all fields, preparing the screen for a new report.

There are three headings that contain a myriad of text fields and drop-down boxes that may be selected to create a report.

#### Field Options for Reporting in SETS Query

- <u>Student Fields</u>: Enter data in the desired text fields to include information pertaining to the student fields in the report. Select the checkbox to include this information in the report. After selecting a checkbox, the user may filter even further by clicking on the text next to the checkbox. This displays a *Web Page Dialog* box that may be used to filter specific fields included in the selected textbox.
- **Folder Fields**: Enter data in the desired text fields to include information pertaining to the *Special Ed. Folder* fields in the report. Select the checkbox to include this information in the report. After selecting a checkbox, the user may filter even further by clicking on the text next to the checkbox. This displays a *Web Page Dialog* box that may be used to filter specific fields included in the selected textbox.
- **Form Fields**: Enter data in the desired text fields to include information pertaining to the *Form* fields in the report. Select the checkbox to include this information in the report. After selecting a checkbox, the user may filter even further by clicking on the text next to the checkbox. This displays a *Web Page Dialog* box that may be used to filter specific fields included in the selected textbox.

• **Form**: Click the down arrow to select a specific form.

SETS Query				min res max
School: ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL	Report Title:	○ xml ④ htm ○ txt y ☑ Active/Referred Only □ A	Archived	Run Counts?Report Name:
Student:	CaseMgr.TNUM CaseMgr.TNUM CaseMgr.TNUM CaseMgr.FName CaseMgr.LName CaseM		F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	Forms:         form:         orm:         Field:         Referral For Evaluation::AL0002         EI Referral Form::AL0003         form:         Notice 0 Forposed Meeting::AL0004         Notice 0 Forposed Meeting::AL0005         Notice 0 Forposed Ideutation::AL0005         Notice 0 Fights B Under The Individuals With Disabilities Education         Observation Form::AL0009         rield:         Consent For Re-Evaluation::AL0012         rom:         Vision Screening Form::AL0012         rom:         FE Team Meeting Minutes::AL0013         EP Team Meeting Minutes::AL0014         Eiglibility Supplement::AL0015         Iteld:         Note of Concert Ext To Truvision Of Epsoinis Education
Results: (Top 5 Results Max)				IEP Profile Page::AL0017a IEP Transition Page::AL0017b IEP Annual Goals::AL0017c IEP Signature Page::AL0017d Student Assessment::AL0018 Compliance Verifiering Form: AL0018

• **Field**: Click the **Ellipsis** button just below the form drop-down box to display the dialog box for selecting form criteria.

C FormAtt	r Webpage Dialog		
🙋 http://train	hing.sti-k12.com/SETS/Query/FormAttr.asp	x?frmid=105&fldid=0&frmname	=AL0002&t=60715210
Form: Field:	AL0002		•
Heading			
Select Pr	operties For Field:	Filter Value:	
None Equal To Not Equi Less Thi Less Thi Greater Greater Empty Not Emp Contains Is Conta Like	al To an an or Equal To Than Than or Equal To bty s		
Sort by ti ⊙ No S ⊖ Ascer ⊖ Desce	his field: ort iding ending		OK Cancel

• **Form**: The form number is automatically displayed based on the selection made in the Query screen.

- **Field**: At the top of the screen, click the down arrow to select a specific field. Every field that is on the form selected will display in this list.
- **Heading**: If the form has more than one field, the heading automatically displays for the selected field.
- **Select Properties for Field**: In the box at the left, highlight a desired property.
- **Filter Value**: Enter a filter value in the right box for the highlighted property.
- **Sort by this Field**: Select either *No Sort, Ascending* or *Descending*.
- After all selections have been made, click **OK**. The report may now be run, based on the selections made.

#### **Procedural Hints**

- Whenever working with a date field in the filters in SETS Query, enter the date in this format: *Year/Month/Day*.
- When trying to run a query with a date range, the dates must be separated with a comma and no space. Example: To run a query for *Next IEP Date* between August 1, 2007 and April 1, 2008, check the box *Next IEP Date* under the folder column. Then click on the text to bring up the filter. Select *between* for filter properties, and then enter the dates in filter value. See screen shot below.

Heading: Next IEP Date   Filter Properties for Field: NextIEPDate Equal To Not Equal To Less Than Less Than or Equal To Greater Than Greater Than or Equal To Is Contained Within Empty Contains Like Not Like Between  Sort by this field: On Change: No Sort No Sort No Sort No Sort Croup Break Ascending Group Break	leid name.	lextIEPDate			
Filter Properties for Field: NextlEPDate       Filter Value:         Equal To       Not Equal To         Less Than       Image: Contained Within         Empty       Contained Within         Like       Image: Contained Within         Between       Image: Contained Within         Sort by this field: On Change:       Image: Contained Within         Image: Contained Within       Image: Contained Within         Between       Image: Contained Within         Sort by this field: On Change:       Image: Contained Within         Image: Contained Within       Image: Contained Within     <	Heading:	lext IEP Date			
Equal To Not Equal To Less Than Less Than or Equal To Greater Than or Equal To Is Contained Within Empty Not Empty Contains Like Not Like Between Correction Change: No Sort No Sort No Break Ascending Group Break	ilter Proper	ies for Field: NextlEPDate	Filt	iter Value:	
Not Like Between Sort by this field: On Change: No Sort No Sort Sort Sort Sort Sort Sort Sort Sort	Equal To Not Equal To Less Than Greater Than Greater Than Is Contained V Empty Not Empty Contains Like	Equal To or Equal To Vithin			
Sort by this field: On Change:       No Sort       No Break       Ascending       Group Break	Not Like			2007/08/01,2008/04/01	1
Sort by this field:       On Change:         Image: Ima	Between				1
O Descending	Sort by this f	eld: On Change: No Break Group Break			

• Filtering between grades or ages works the same way as the date range. Example: To filter those students who are between age 7 and 10, select *between* on filter properties and for the filter value, enter *7*,*10*.

Note: Some computers may have *pop-up blockers* that will keep the query from coming up. If the report does not appear onscreen, click the **View Report** link right above the query sample at the bottom of the screen. See screen shot below.

State			G	ifted.LName
Results: (T	op 5 Results	Max) – View P	Report	
<u>SNUM</u>	Last Name	<u>First Name</u>	Primary.EXC.Code	<u>LRE.Name</u>
419000000	CLARK	LOIS	MR	04-Less than 40% of the
215555555	AGUILARA	CHRISTINA	ED	04-Less than 40% of the
44444444	ARNOLD	HUDSON	MB	04-Less than 40% of the
411111111	BOGART	HUMPHREY	MB	04-Less than 40% of the
699999999	CHARLES	RAY	OHI	03-79%-40% of the day I

## **Building Reports in SETS Query**

The following sections provide systematic examples of how to build reports with SETS Query. The same basic procedures are used for building all reports with this feature.

The differences in these reports are the format and data elements selected. All queried reports using the HTM format are "active" reports, meaning the user may click on a student's name in the report preview to go directly to that student's folder.

The option to designate reports as *Public* or *Private* may be used when reports are saved for future use.

The designation of *Public* allows anyone with access to SETS Query to run the report. The designation of *Private* allows only the creator of the report to run it.

## Sample SETS Query Reports

## Report of Students Pursuing the Alabama High School Diploma by Grade

The following example demonstrates the process of creating a report listing all students pursuing the Alabama High School Diploma, in which students are listed alphabetically by *Grade Level*, *Race*, *Exit Reason*, *Date of Exit* and *Exceptionality*.

- <u>Step 1</u>: Select SETS Query from the Reports Desktop
- **<u>Step 2</u>**: If appropriate, click the down arrow to select a school. For this example, leave the selection at *All Schools*.
- <u>Step 3</u>: Enter a report title. For this title, enter *Students Pursuing the Alabama High School Diploma by Grade*.
- <u>Step 4</u>: In the column labeled *Student*, check the following data elements in this order: *SNUM*, *Last Name*, *First Name*, *Grade* and *Ethnic Group (Race)*. Then click on the text labeled **Grade**. At the next screen, select **Group Break**. This will separate each group by grade level. (Note: The order in which data elements are selected is the order in which these elements will print on the report.) Then click **OK**.
- <u>Step 5</u>: In the *Folder* column, check *EXC.Code Primary*.
- <u>Step 6</u>: In the *Forms* column, click the down arrow to select **IEP** Transition Page.

- <u>Step 7</u>: Click the .... (Ellipsis) button.
- <u>Step 8</u>: Click the down arrow by *Field* to select AlabamaHighSchoolDiploma.
- **Step 9**: In the box at left, highlight *Equal To*.
- <u>Step 10</u>: In the *Filter Value* box at right, enter 1 (the number one). On the *Transition Page* of the IEP, diploma choices are checkboxes. <u>Note</u>: 1 designates that a checkbox is checked ON and a 0 (zero) designates a checkbox is unchecked. Click **OK**. The screen should look similar to the one below.

SETS Query	min res n	nax
School: Repc All Schools ♥ Ioma Student: Zip AC Phone Grade ♥ Grade 0 Bools DOB 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	itie: xml • htm • txt Run Counts?Report Name:   Grade Totals Only Active/Referred Only Archived Load Save   Folder: Forms:     Gifted.TNUM     Gifted.FName     Gifted.FName     Gifted.Iname     Gifted.Iname     Gifted.Iname     Form:     Form:   Form:   Form:    Form:    Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:    Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Form:   Field:   Field:	
Results: (Top 5 Results Max) SNUM Last Name First Name Ethnic (	upGradePrimary.EXC.CodeAlabamaHighSchoolDiploma	
111666777 ARNOLD NEAL WHITE	7 MR 1	
222111333 BRUNNER CLARENCE WHITE	Z ED 1	
22222229 BACH JOHANN BLACK		
222333444 BRUNNER MARK WHITE		
239000000 APPLEGATE CHRISTINA WHITE	8 ED I	

• <u>Step 11</u>: Click **Run**. The report results should look similar to the screen shown below.

CALLINA		First	Ethnic	Crada	Drimany EVC Code	Alabama High Sabaal Dinlama
SNUM	Last Name	Name	Group	Grade	Primary.EXC.COde	AlabamanighschoolDipioma
222111333	BRUNNER	CLARENCE	WHITE	7	ED	1
222222229	BACH	JOHANN	BLACK	7	SLD	1
4440007777	A DNIOL D	NEAL	WHITE	7	MR	1
Grade:7 =	3	NEAL		÷		
Grade:7 =	3	NEAL				
Grade:7 =	ARNOLD 3 Last Name	First Name	Ethnic Group	Grade	Primary.EXC.Code	AlabamaHighSchoolDiploma
Grade:7 =	Last Name	First Name LUDWIG	Ethnic Group WHITE	Grade	Primary.EXC.Code	AlabamaHighSchoolDiploma
SNUM 21111144 222333444	Last Name BEETHOVEN BRUNNER	First Name LUDWIG MARK	Ethnic Group WHITE WHITE	Grade	Primary.EXC.Code GT SLD	AlabamaHighSchoolDiploma

• <u>Step 12</u>: To save the report for future use, click the **Save** button. Enter a name for the report and click **OK**.

#### Report of Students with Blank Exceptionality Codes

The following example demonstrates the process of creating a report that lists all students (in alphabetical order) who have blank LRE's or Exceptionality Codes. This report would be helpful for correcting Child Count Errors. By selecting the HTM format, the user would be able to click on a student's name and go directly to the student's folder, to edit the LRE or Exceptionality.

- **<u>Step 1</u>**: From the Reports Desktop, select **Sets Query**.
- <u>Step 2</u>: If appropriate, click the down arrow to select a school. For this example, leave the selection at **All Schools**.
- <u>Step 3</u>: Enter a *Report Title*. For this example, enter *Students with Blank Exceptionality Codes*.
- <u>Step 4</u>: In the column labeled *Student*, check the following data elements in this order: *SNUM*, *Last Name* and *First Name*. The order in which data elements are selected is the order in which these elements print on the report.
- **<u>Step 5</u>**: In the *Folder* column, check *EXC.Code Primary*.
- <u>Step 6</u>: Click on the text labeled *EXC.Code Primary*. This displays a new *Web Page Dialog* box.
- **<u>Step 7</u>**: From the left box, highlight *Empty*.
- Step 8: Click OK.
- **Step 9**: Click **Run**. The report should look similar to the sample report shown below.
- <u>Step 10</u>: From the preview of this report, double-click on any student's name to display the student's folder. The user may edit the Exceptionality in the folder for any/all students in this report. The same procedure may be run on *Blank LRE's*, *Most Recent Date Enrolled*, etc.

SNUM	Last Name	First Name	Primary.EXC.Code
811111111	GUMP	FOREST	
111111112	WOOD	ELUAH	
425000000	CLOONEY	ROSEMARY	
26100000	SHIELDS	BROOKE	
500000000	WEST	MAE	
232222222	BRADSHAW	CARRIE	
211000000	BULLOCK	SANDRA	
235000000	BURNETT	CAROL	
330000000	BUSH	GEORGE	
339999999	PHILLIPS	KAREN	
141000000	BUCKLEY	TOMMIE	
433333333	COURIC	KATIE	
323111111	DOLE	ELIZABETH	
466666666	DOO	SCOOBY DOOBY	(
551000000	CARSON	JOHNNY	
192000000	KELLER	HELEN	
552000000	WINFREY	OPRAH	
300000000	CARNEY	ART	
24400000	OLINITON	DILL	

## Report of Students Needing Accommodations for Stanford Achievement Test

To generate this report:

- <u>Step 1</u>: From the Reports Desktop, select Sets Query.
- **Step 2**: If appropriate, click the down arrow to select a single school. For this example, leave the selection at *All Schools*.
- <u>Step 3</u>: Enter a report title. For this example, enter *Students Needing Accommodations for Stanford Achievement Test.*
- <u>Step 4</u>: In the column labeled *Student*, check the following data elements in this order: *SNUM*, *LName*, *FName* and *Grade*. The order in which data elements are selected is the order in which these elements print on the report.
- <u>Step 5</u>: In the column labeled *Forms*, click the down arrow to select **Student Assessment**.

SETS Query						min res n	max
School: ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL	Report Title:	○ xml ④ htm ○ txt Only ☑ Active/Referred Only □ Ard	:hive	Rur	Counts?Report Name:	d Save Nev	w
Student:	Folder:			Form	IS:		
SNUM	CaseMgr.TNU	JM 2	<b>^</b>	Form: Field	Student Assessment::AL0018	~	^
Fname	CaseMgr.FNa	ame			·		
Laama	CaseMar I Na			Form:		*	_
		aine		Field:		A	=
Addr1	Gifted			]			
				Form:		~	
Addr2	Gifted.TNUN	N		Field:		. A. 	

• <u>Step 6</u>: Click the <u>button</u>.

- <u>Step 7</u>: Click the down arrow to select AccommodationsForStanford10.
- <u>Step 8</u>: In the left box, highlight *Not Empty*. Click **OK**.
- <u>Step 9</u>: In the column labeled *Forms* (the next *Forms* field), click the down arrow and select **Student Assessment** again.
- **Step 10**: Click the ... button.
- <u>Step 11</u>: Click the down arrow and scroll down to select Stanford10SchedTimeMostBeneficial.
- <u>Step 12</u>: In the left box, highlight *Not Empty*. Then click **OK**.
- <u>Step 13</u>: In the *Forms* column, click the down arrow to select **Student Assessment**.
- **<u>Step 14</u>**: Click the **button**.
- <u>Step 15</u>: Click the down arrow and scroll down to select Stanford10SettingCarrel.

- **<u>Step 16</u>**: In the left box, highlight *Not Empty*. Then click **OK**.
- <u>Step 17</u>: Repeat the accommodation selection procedure until all appropriate accommodations have been selected. A sample screen with similar selections is shown below.

Note: All reports generated in the HTM format are "active" reports. The user may access student folder information from the report preview screen by simply double-clicking on any student's name.

SETS Query			min	res max
School: Report	. Title: O xml () htm O txt	R	un Counts? Report Name:	
All Schools	ent Test Totals Only Active/Referred Only Archive	ed	Load Save	New
Student:	Folder:	For	rms:	
SNUM	CaseMgr.TNUM	For	m: Student Assessment::AL0018	× ^
		Fie/	ld:AccommodtationsForStanford10	A
Fname	CaseMgr.FName		is not empty	
		For	m Student Assessment: AL 0018	
Lname	CaseMgr.LName	Fie	M Student Assessment. ALUVIO	
		2		-
Addr1	Gifted	<u> </u>	is not empty	-
		For	m: Student Assessment::AL0018	*
Addr2	Gifted.TNUM	Fiel	ld: Stanford10SettingCarrel	- A
	×		.) is not empty	- A
City	Gifted.FName	For	/m:	~
		Fie	eld:	
State	Gifted.LName	6		
Results: (Top 5 Results Max)				
SNUM Last Name First Name Accommo	dtationsForStanford10Stanford10SchedTimeMostBenefic	cial ?	Stanford10SettingCarrel	
410000000 ANGELOU MAYA 0	0	C C	j	
111111111 AARON MICHAEL 0	0	<b>-</b> 7		
191000000 ASTAIRE FRED 1	1	-		
556000000 ADJUSTED MAL I				
313000000 RICARDU RICKY I	1	<b>1</b>	1	

- **<u>Step 18</u>**: The report may now be generated. To do this, click **Run**.
- **Step 19**: The report should look similar to the one shown.

		<u>St</u>	udents Needing Accommodations	s for Stanford Achievement Test	
SNUM	Last Name	First Name	AccommodtationsForStanford10	Stanford10SchedTimeMostBeneficial	Stanford10SettingCarrel
410000000	ANGELOU	MAYA	0	0	0
111111111	AARON	MICHAEL	0	0	0
191000000	ASTAIRE	FRED	1	1	1
556000000	ADJUSTED	MAL	1	1	1
313000000	RICARDO	RICKY	1	1	1
111111117	ARQUETTE	DAVID	1	0	0
120000032	CAPPS	ELAINE	1	1	1
102103333	COLLINS	KIMBERLY	1	1	1

- <u>Step 20</u>: To save this report for future use, click **Save** in the upper right corner. Give this query a name and click **OK**. If **Public** is selected, other users with rights to SETS Query will be able to run this report. If **Private** is selected, only the creator of the query may run the report.
- <u>Step 21</u>: To load this query again click Load from the SETS Query screen. Highlight the name of the query and click OK. Then click Run.

#### Special Education Listing of Drop-Outs by Exceptionality

To run this report:

- <u>Step 1</u>: From the Report Desktop, select SETS Query.
- **Step 2**: If appropriate, click the down arrow to select a school. For this example, leave the selection at *All Schools*.
- <u>Step 3</u>: Enter a report title. For this example, use *Special Education Listing of Drop Outs*.
- <u>Step 4</u>: In the column labeled *Student*, check the following data elements: *SNUM*, *LName* and *FName*.
- <u>Step 5</u>: In the column labeled *Folder*, check the following data elements: *EXC.Code Primary*, *ExitingReason* and *ExitingDate*.
- **<u>Step 6</u>**: Go back and click on the text labeled *ExitingReason*.
- <u>Step 7</u>: At the next screen, highlight **Equal** to in the left box and highlight **Dropped Out** in the right box. Then click **OK**.
- **<u>Step 8</u>**: Click **Run**. A sample report is shown below.

	<u>Spec</u>	ial Educati	on Listing of Drop	<u>Outs</u>	
SNUM	Last Name	First Name	Primary.EXC.Code	Exit Reason	Exit Date
111111111	AARON	MICHAEL	SLD	Dropped out	2005/12/05
120000024	JERNIGAN	BERNICE	ОНІ	Dropped out	2005/07/18
111122222	AFORETHOT	MAL S.	SLD	Dropped out	

#### Special Education Students over the Age of 16

To run this report:

- **<u>Step 1</u>**: From the Report Desktop, select **SETS Query**.
- <u>Step 2</u>: If appropriate, click the down arrow to select a school. For this example, leave the selection at *All Schools*.
- <u>Step 3</u>: Enter a report title. For this example, use *Special Education Students over the Age of 16*.
- <u>Step 4</u>: In the column labeled *Student*, check the following data elements: *SNUM*, *LName*, *FName* and *Age*.
- **<u>Step 5</u>**: Click on the text labeled *Age*.
- <u>Step 6</u>: At the next screen highlight **Greater Than** in the left box and highlight **16** in the right box. Then click **OK**.
- **Step 7**: After clicking **Run**, the report should generate and look similar to the one shown below.

SNUM	Last Name	First Name	Age
16000000	EISENHOWER	DVMGHT	17
14000000	FLINTSTONE	FRED	17
00000005	GROOM	WINSTON	17
88888888	JERNIGAN	BERNICE	17
999999999	NEWMAN	PAUL	17

#### Birthday List by Month

To run this report:

- **<u>Step 1</u>**: From the Report Desktop, select **SETS Query**.
- **Step 2**: If appropriate, click the down arrow to select a school. For this example, leave the selection at *All Schools*.
- <u>Step 3</u>: Enter a report title. For this example, use *Birthday List by Month*.
- <u>Step 4</u>: In the column labeled *Student*, check the following data elements: *SNUM*, *LName*, *FName*, *DOB*, *BirthMonth* and *Age*.
- **Step 5**: Click on the text labeled *Birth Month*.
- **<u>Step 6</u>**: At the next screen, highlight *Group Break*. Then click **OK**.
- <u>Step 7</u>: After clicking **Run**, the report should look similar to the one shown below.

Birti	hday List by A	<u>Aonth</u>	
SNUM Last Name	First Name	Birthdate BirthMe	onth Age
111444444 EDGAR	LEE	1994/04/10 Apr	11
120000035 CULPEPPER	ERIC	1991/04/16 Apr	14
333333333 ARNOLD	JENNIFER	1989/04/04 Apr	16
333555555 RYAN	MEG	1993/04/08 Apr	12
214444444 SCHWARTZNEGG	ER ARNOLD	1993/04/01 Apr	12
191000000 ASTAIRE	FRED	1995/04/10 Apr	10
211000000 BULLOCK	SANDRA	1996/04/22 Apr	9
BirthMonth:Apr = 7			
	_		
SNUM Last Name	First Name	Birthdate BirthMo	onth Age
200000007 BARTON	CLARA	1992/08/24 Aug	13
111111117 ARQUETTE	DAVID	1993/08/12 Aug	12
334333333 SMITH	WILL	1991/08/02 Aug	14
200000006 SCHUMANN	ROBERT	1989/08/31 Aug	16
213444444 BRUNNER	VVILLIAM	1990/08/17 Aug	15
74444444 CARTER	JIMMY	1991/08/06 Aug	14
311111111 CHOPIN	FREDERICK	1991/08/31 Aug	14
599999999 BUNKER	EDITH	1990/08/15 Aug	15
3888888888 JERNIGAN	BERNICE	1988/08/29 Aug	17
222333444 BRUNNER	MARK	1990/08/10 Aug	15
222444555 CULPEPPER	BESSIE	1992/08/11 Aug	13
111333333 ARNOLD	LUKE	1991/08/14 Aug	14
111222333 ARNOLD	HUDSON	1992/08/12 Aug	13
BirthMonth:Aug = 13			
SNUM Last Name	First Name	Birthdate BirthMo	onth Age
211111116 AFFLECK	BEN	1988/12/09 Dec	16
212222222 ARNOLD	TOM	1988/12/02 Dec	16
420000000 SQUIRREL	SANDY LEE	1991/12/12 Dec	13
212000000 BLANKENSHIP	PAULINE	1993/12/21 Dec	11
350000000 BOOP	BETTY	1995/12/07 Dec	9
BirthMonth:Dec = 5			
SNUM Last Name	First Name	Birthdate BirthMe	onth Age
666666666 BERRY	HALLE	1994/02/10 Feb	11
800000000 BOND	JAMES	1992/02/21 Feb	13
544444444 STEA/ART	libaba	1991/02/04 Feb	14

## **Process Timeline**

This report is used to determine where students are in their processes. The report will count down the number of days and notify the user if a form is past due in a process.

	neopla of rioscadin	angeneringlichen achteren
Process Timeline		min res max
Search Criteria		
School	Employee Caseload	Exceptionality
All Schools 💟		×
✓ LRE		
01-100%-80% of the day Inside the Ger	Ed Environment	Print Print

Perform the following steps to run this report. Select any of these reporting options:

- Select the appropriate school.
- Define which employee's caseload to examine.
- Choose the needed LRE's as indicated in the pick list.
- Select the Exceptionalities to report.
- Click **Search** to generate the report.
- Click **Print** to preview and print the report.

Send to Printer											
Sort by Stude	nt Name			Sort by	Schoo	I Name, Studen	t Name				
Sort by Case	Manager, Student I	Name		Sort by	Schoo	I Name, Case M	lanager, Student N	lame			
111	122222	Case Manager	r			School Nar	me		Entry Date		
AFORETH	HOT, MAL S.	JEANIE HILL		AL	ABAMA	SETS MIDDLE	SCHOOL (150)	1/1/			
		Exceptionality	Gifted	IDE	A	Deaf / Blind	I LRE	Sec	ondary LRE		
State	Number	SLD	Yes	Ye	-	No	01		00		
DOB	Age	010			-	Defense tithere t	FD D				
11/11/1990	17			-							
Grade	Gender	Initial Eligbility		Days	0	verdue	IEP Due		Days		
7	M						12/31/2006				
Ethnic	SSN	R	eevaluatio	n Process				Next IEP Process			
W	111-12-2222	Next Eligibility		Davs	0	werdue	IEP Due	Davs			
LEP	Migrant	inext Englishing					12/20/2008	2015			
1	Yes		12/30/2000	2/30/2000							
:	225	Case Manager	r			School Nar	me		Entry Date		
AUTAUG	A, COUNTY	Ryan Duclos		ALA	BAMA	SETSWEB HIG	H SCHOOL (152)		1/1/1900		
State	Number	Exceptionality	Gifted	IDE	A	Deaf / Blind	d LRE	Sec	ondary LRE		
DOB	Age	SLI	Yes	Ye	s	No	01		00		
6/20/1991	16										
Grade	Gender					Referral thru I	EP Process				
10	F	Initial Eligbility		Days	0	verdue	IEP Due		Days		
Ethnic	SSN										
W	222-22-2228	R	eevaluatio	n Process				Nex	xt IEP Process		
LEP	No	Next Eligibility		Days	0	verdue	IEP Due		Days		
223	000000	Case Manager	r			School Nar	me		Entry Date		
BRAHMS,	JOHANNES	GAIL COMINS	,		ALA	BAMA K-12 SCH	HOOL (123)	1/1/			
State	Number	Exceptionality	Gifted	I IDE	A	Deaf / Blind	I LRE	Sec	Secondary LRE		
DOB	Age	SU	Ves	Ve	•	No	01		00		

# **Child Count Desktop**

## **About Child Count**

Alabama Child Count is an annual count of students with disabilities. Child Count is generally run on October 1<sup>st</sup> of every year to generate state and federal funding for Special Education students. STISETSWeb checks for errors that will exclude Special Education students from Child Count. STISETSWeb also provides a simple, comprehensive way of correcting these errors and then exporting Child Count data to the State Department of Education.

## **Child Count Error Report**

Open the Child Count Desktop and select the *Error List* sub-menu to check for Child Count errors. On the left side of the screen is the Child Count Summary. This area gives shows grouped counts of the students that are to be included in the Child Count file. The user may select the group by drop-down list to view a break-down of additional data counts. Click on the plus sign next to each category to expand the group.

Note: This area does not filter options for the error report.

	op) a drivop com
Child Count Report	
Child Count Summary Group By: By LRE ▼ Grand Total (36) □ By LRE 01 (2) 02 (8) 03 (11) 04 (9) 05 (3) 12 (3)	School         Schools         ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL         ALABAMA SETS MIDDLE SCH         ALABAMA SETSWEB HIGH S         Staff Member         System Administrator         Error Type         Both         Break by School         Print

On the right side of the screen is the reporting option for the error / warning report.

• Use the filter options to select the parameters of the Error Report.

- Select the option to run the Child Count Error Report by *School* or by an individual *Staff Member*.
- Select the type of report to run: by *Error*, *Warning*, or *Both*; and choose the print option provided.
- Then click the **Print** button.
- The Child Count Error report is an active report. By clicking on the *Sort By* options at the top of the report, the user may sort the students on the report as desired. When the user clicks on an error code in the grid at the top of the page, the report will be sorted by the error code selected. Click on any student's name to open the student's folder.

Note: When a student's folder is opened in this manner, the report will be minimized to the task bar.

Sena to Printer																									
Sort by Stude	ent Name										So	ort by G	irad	e, Stu	dent I	Vame									
Sort by Scho	ol Name, Student	Name									Sc	ort by S	cho	ol Nar	me, G	rade,	Studen	t Name	2						
Printed On: 4/	11/2008 2:50:22 F	M																		So	ftware	: 7	echnok	av.	Inc.
							Ch-	i al	<u>_</u>				- 1	1.1.4											
							CI	lia		uni		EIIO		LISI											
								127	of 12	7 Errol	rs i	Display	ed												
A Invalid Exce	eptionality	(10	)) G	Date B	Enrolle	d Blan	k or >	Dec	1 (8	35)   L	. D	)ate of E	Birth	i > Da	te of I	Enrollr	nent	(0) Q	Duplic	ate SSN	1	(8)			
B Blank Excep	otionality	(59	) H	Gifted	Cann	ot be I	DEA	funde	d	(0) N	MIn	nvalid S	ecor	ndary	LRE	Code		(1) R	Invalid	I Name					(0)
C Gender Cod	e Invalid	(0	)   [ ]	Missin	g 90-E	Day Tr	ansitio	on Me	eting	(0) N	NM	lissing S	itate	e ID			(12	26) S	Invalid	I LEP				(1	24)
D Invalid Race	e Code	(0	) J	Invalid	1 Age	tor Gra	ade	-	(	(9) C	Din	nvalid S	cho	ol				(0) Z1	1 Invalid	ISSN					(2)
ELRE age 0 -	21 Invalid Code	(00	(4) Z3 Active and Withdrawn														(0)								
FLRE age 5 -	r End age 5 - 5 mivano Code (m) Z3 Active and Withdrawh (10)												(10)												
LEA: ALABAMA DISTRICT - 777 Capture Date: 10/1/2007																									
	School Number: 123, 150, 152										,152														
111	11111		Cas	e Man	ager					Sch	ho	ol Nam	e				Entr	y Date	Witho	Irawal			Status		
AARON.	ICHAEL E.																		Da	ate					
			ANI	GUIN	BILL						<b>K</b> .4	12 90-04		(122)			9/15	/1000				_		_	
State	Number	1		oena,						0000		2 0011		- (120)	·		0/10	1000						· .	
		Exce	ption	nality		IDEA Deaf / Blind LRE						Second	dary LR	E	Date	e (	Of Elig	bili	ity						
DOB	Age		SLD			No	Yes No 02									10/10/2005									
6/2/1996	11		et Dec	ant D		Ten	stiened Data of 90 Day. Data of Initial					Referral Date				IER in Place on									
Grade	Gender	MO	Fnr	olled	ate	F	rom El Transition Meeting IEP Meeting				ina	Referral Date				Third Birthday									
2	M			oncu		- · ·						incerning.	9								Third Dirtitiday				
Ethnic	SSN		10/10	0/2001			No											10/1	0/2004		No				
W	111-11-1111	A	в	С	D	F	F	G	н	1	Т	J	<u>ر</u>	1	м	N	0	P	0	S	S 71 72 7			73	
LEP	Migrant	<u> </u>	-	-	-	-	•	-		· ·	+		•	-				· ·	-			+		-	
	No											W				W					W				
558/	00000		Cas	e Man	ager					Sch	ho	ol Nam	e				Entr	y Date	Witho	Irawal			Status		
ADJUS	TED MAI										Lindy D					Date									
1.5000	120, 1112		5.0	-1 7																	ACTIVE		_		
State	Number		FO	ster, i	eny				ALAD	AMA	N-1	12 30 10	501	. (123)	·								RGTIVE	1	
		Exce	ption	nality		Gifted		10	DEA	De	eaf	f / Blind	1		LRE			Second	dary LR	E	Date	e (	Of Elig	bili	ity
DOB	Age		SLI			No		Y	'es			No			05			1	03			7	/1/2008	3	
11/1/1994	12									-				D-4									- 01		
Grade	Gender	MO	Enri	olled	ate	Ira	TOR	FI	Tra	nsitio	n y nn	Meeting		IEP	Meet	ina		Reter	rai Date		Th	r I Vic	n Piác d Ricth	e Ol udas	n v
5	М	1	Ento	oned			TOIL	-1	i ra	insitio		meeting	9	ICP	meet	ing						m		ua)	,
Ethnic	SSN		10/10	0/2003	1		No							10/	10/20	04		10/1	0/2004				Yes		
W	558-00-0000	0	D	C	D	E	E	G	ш		-	1		1		M	0	D	0	D	c	-	71 7	2	72
LEP	Migrant	^		· ·		-	-		п				•	-		14	•		4	N.				-	23
	Yes															W					W				
211			Cas	e Man	ager					Sch	ho	ol Nam	e				Entr	y Date	Witho	Irawal			Status		
AFE1 6	CK BEN																		Da	ate					
AFFLE	on, ben		-											(4.0.0)			0.00					_		_	
Foster, Diana ALA						ALAB	AMA K	K-1	12 SCH	JOL	. (123)	)		8/12	/1999				1	ACTIVE	-				
state	i univer	Exce	ption	nality		Gifted		IC	DEA	De	eaf	f / Blind			LRE			Second	dary LR	E	Date	e (	Of Elig	bili	ity
DOB	Age	-	OHI			No		Y	'es			No	+		04										_
12/9/1988	18	<b></b>						L .'					_									_			

- **X** = Error for the designated code field
- **W** = Warning for the designated code field.

Note: A warning (W) will NOT prevent a child from being included in Child Count, but an error (X) WILL exclude a child. All errors must be corrected for students to be included in the Child Count file.

## **Error Codes**

Error codes that may be generated are defined as follows:

- <u>A: Invalid Exceptionality</u>: Occurs when the Exceptionality that is selected is age-specific and no longer applies to the student's current age (e.g., when a child is marked as Developmental Delay and is over the age of 8). This error will also occur if the Exceptionality code is left blank
- <u>**B**: Blank Exceptionality</u>: Occurs when the Exceptionality field is left blank.
- <u>**C**: Gender Code Invalid</u>: Occurs when the Gender Code that reports from STIOffice is blank on the Student Desktop.
- <u>**D**: Invalid Race Code</u>: Occurs when the Race Code that reports from STIOffice is blank on the Student Desktop.
- <u>E: LRE age 6-21 Invalid Code</u>: Occurs if the LRE Code for the specified age range is invalid (e.g., it is not a code of the 01-11 range). This error will also occur if the LRE Code is left blank.
- F: LRE age 3-5 Invalid Code: Occurs if the LRE Code for the specified age range is invalid (e.g., it is not a code of the 12-17 range). This error will also occur if the LRE Code is left blank.
- <u>**G**: Date Enrolled Blank or > Dec. 1</u>: Occurs when the date of the child's enrollment in Special Education is left blank or the date of enrollment exceeds the current year's Child Count Date.
- <u>H: Gifted cannot be IDEA funded</u>: Occurs if *Gifted* is selected as the Exceptionality and the *IDEA* box is checked.
- <u>I: Missing 90-Day Transition Meeting</u>: Occurs if the *Transition* from EI Program box is checked but no date has been defined for the 90-Day Transition Meeting.
- <u>J: Invalid Age for Grade</u>: Occurs if the student's age is too great for the current grade placement.
- <u>K: Invalid Exceptionality DD age > 8</u>: Occurs if a student has an Exceptionality of *Developmentally Delayed* when the age is greater than 8.
- <u>L: Date of Birth > Date of Enrollment</u>: Occurs if the *Date of Enrollment* field is left blank or an enrollment date is entered that is BEFORE the date of birth. For example, if a student's date of birth is 12/1/00 and the Date of Enrollment is 12/1/99, this error will be created.
- <u>M: Invalid Secondary LRE Code</u>: Occurs if a student is marked for an LRE of 05 (*Private School: Parent Placed*) but no Secondary LRE is selected.
- <u>N: Missing State ID</u>: This will appear as a warning for those students who do not have a State Enrollment ID assigned.
- <u>O: Invalid School</u>: This error will occur if an invalid school number has been assigned.
- **<u>P: Possible Duplicate</u>**: This warning occurs if there are two students with the same name.

- **Q: Duplicate SSN**: This error occurs if two or more students have the same Social Security Number.
- **<u>R: Invalid Name</u>**: This error occurs when there is a parenthesis in the first or last name field.
- <u>S: Invalid LEP</u>: This warning occurs when a student has not been given an LEP Code in the STIOffice program. These students will be included in the Child Count totals.
- **<u>Z1</u>**: **Invalid SSN**: Occurs if the Social Security Number is left blank.
- <u>Z2: Invalid Student ID</u>.: Occurs if the Student Identification Number is left blank.
- **<u>Z3</u>**: Active and Withdrawn</u>: Occurs if the student has a SIS Status of inactive and a Student Folder status of active.

## **Exporting Child Count**

Select the file format, TXT or XML then click on the **Download** button to create the file. The default file format is TXT. The following screen will display. Click on **Save**.



• The *Save as* screen will then display. Select the folder in which to save the file. It may be helpful to create a special folder for this purpose, called *ChildCountxxXXXX*, with the *X*'s representing the LEA number and year for this Child Count. Then click **Save** on this screen.



## **Student List**

The *Student Listing* in Child Count includes students who are active, who do not have errors, and who are eligible for Child Count. This is a list of the students who will be included in the Child Count file.

Child Count Student List	
Child Count Summary Group By: By LRE ▼ Grand Total (36) □ By LRE 01 (2) 02 (8) 03 (11) 04 (9) 05 (3) 12 (3)	Sort Order Print Student Name

• To print the Child Count Student List, select sort order. Students may be sorted by *Student Name, School Name* or *Case Manager Name*. Click the **Print** button.

Note: The sort order has NO impact on the output of the report. This simply refers to the view of the Child Count numbers. This is the same grid that is in the *Child Count Error* screen.

## **Snapshot Administration**

This feature is used to administer Child Count snapshots. From this screen, the user may review the following information:

- <u>Date On Record</u>: This is the Child Count Date that was entered in the *Child Count Date* field in the System File at the time the snapshot was taken.
- **<u>Student Body</u>**: This is the total student count in STISETSWeb.
- <u>Active</u>: This is the total number of Active Special Education Folders in STISETSWeb.
- <u>Valid</u>: This is the total number of students what will be included in the Child Count file.
- **<u>Errors</u>**: This is the total number of Active student records with Child Count errors. These students will NOT be included in the Child Count data.
- **Date Created**: This is the date and time at which the Child Count Snapshot was taken for the *Date On Record*.

Snapsh	Snapshot Administration					min res max
WARNING! 1. If you Delete a 2. Make sure yo 3. If you are not	Snapshot there is no going b u want to delete the Snapshot an Administrator you will not l	ack. before you do so. be able to delete a Snar	oshot.			
Delete	Date On Record	Student Body	Active	Valid	Errors	Date Created
Errors	10/1/2007	132	127	36	91	3/26/2008 10:19:25 AM
Export Print						

The buttons on the left of the screen perform the same functions as the same menu item listed under the Child Count Desktop.

Other Administration options are:

- **Delete**: Used to delete the selected (highlighted) snapshot
- **Errors**: Runs the Child Count Error Report.
- **Export**: Used to export the Child Count file. Follow the directions listed in section "Exporting Child Count" on page 87.
- **Print**: Generates the Child Count List in PDF format.

Note: Once a Snapshot is deleted, it cannot be retrieved. Be sure that the desired Snapshot is highlighted before clicking **Delete**. Always review the Error List and Student List after taking a Snapshot and before sending Child Count to the SDE.

## **Editing Child Count**

Student Folder	min res m 🛆
Student Folder	
Basic Other Preschool Gifted	

## Edit Student's Snap Shot

The **Edit Student's Snap Shot** button will be found in the student folder for those students in the Child Count Snapshot. It may be used to view or edit a student's folder data. Any corrections that need to be made for Child Count after the Snapshot has been taken will be made here, not in the current folder.

🕙 Student Snap Shot Webpag	ge Dialog		X
- Student Snap Shot-			_ ^
Snap Shot	LEA	Case Manager	
10/1/2007	999	Administrator, System	
s 10/1/2007	Student #	Student Name	
10/1/2008 Active	74444444	CARTER, JIMMY	
First Name	Middle Name	Last Name	
JIMMY		CARTER	
Soc. Sec. #	DOB	Age	
744-44-4444	08/06/1991	16	
Grade	Gender	Ethnicity	
12	М	W	
SIS Entry Date	SIS Withdrawal Date		
MM/dd/yyyyy	MM/dd/yyyyy		
LEP	Migrant		
State Identification Number	School Name	School Code	
1961475744	ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL	0123	
Academic Year	Home Room	Lunch Code	
2007	101		
LRE			
05-Private School (Parentally Placed)	)	×	
Secondary LRE			
01-100%-80% of the day Inside the	Sen Ed Environment	<b>~</b>	
Exceptionality	Gifted	Most Recent Date Enrolled	

To edit the Snapshot for a student:

- Select the student and open his/her folder
- Click on the Edit Student's Snap Shot button
- Use the drop-down list in the upper left corner of the screen to select the Child Count date to edit.
- Make any changes to the data on the screen and click **OK** to save the changes.

Window	s Internet Explorer
?	The selected student does not have snapshot data for the selected date (10/1/2008). Do you want to insert the selected student into the selected date's snapshot?

To add a student to the Child Count file after the snapshot has been taken:

- Create the student folder.
- Click on the Edit Student's Snap Shot button
- The screen will display with a message, as shown in the above screen shot.
- Click **OK**.
- The data entered in the student's folder when created will be added to the Snapshot.

#### **Child Count Verification Report**

Click this link to create a Child Count Verification audit report. A PDF version of this report will be displayed. The report may be saved locally by clicking on the disk icon in the menu bar at the top of the screen.

# **Medicaid Desktop**

## Setting up the Medicaid Feature

The first step in implementing the Medicaid Direct Service billing program is to identify those individuals who are eligible to participate. In order to be eligible, system employees must meet the licensure/credentialing requirements as defined in the Alabama Medicaid Provider Manual. Please refer to program documentation for further details.

The user should enter all eligible services offered by each applicable provider. If any of these providers have not yet been entered as employees in STISETSWeb, these records must be created in the program before proceeding.

#### Creating Employee Records

Follow these steps to enter employees who are not yet in STISETSWeb into the system:

- Go to Utilities Desktop | Employees.
- Click on **Insert** and enter all applicable employee information.
- After all necessary employee records have been created, follow the steps below.

#### **Entering Services for Eligible Providers**

Follow the steps below to enter provider services:

- Go to Utilities Desktop | Employees.
- Enter the name of the employee and click **Search**.
- Once the correct employee, click on the **Prov Type** button on the left of the search screen.

SETS min res max	No Student Sele	cted			min res max 🛆
System Administrator ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desktop Login Info Select a Student Alert Subscriptions Student Desktop	Selected Student Student Name Special Education Status Homeroom Exceptionality	Student ID Date of Birth Entry / Withdrawal Date LEA	School Name Age Gender LEP	SIS Status Grade Race Migrant	Lookup
Employees Employees Code Desktop Security Desktop Process Desktop Create Student Folder Caseload Assignment System Files Delete a Student Mass Assign Exit/Archive Students Un-Archive Students	Employees Search Criteria Last Name begood	Record of Access  rst Name Search Include Gen E	d Teachers	Stude	nt Progress Services V
Critical Student Information Progress Periods Alert Templates Supplemental Data Child Count Desktop Error List Export Student List Snapshot Administration Medicaid Desktop	Insert Change Delete Caseload Prov Type Import	Teacher Number Las	t Name 00D	First Name JOHNNY	

• The *Staff Services* screen will display.

	Staff Provider	Types
Insert	Name	ProviderNumber
Change		
Delete		

٠

Click on **Insert** to enter the Provider Type for this Employee.

Staff Provider Type Properties     Provider Type	Needs Supervision	
Begin Date MM/dd/yyyy Record will be Added	End Date MM/dd/yyyy	OK Cancel

- Click on the .... button next to the *Provider Type* field to search for and select a service.
- Type in the name of the service or provider number and click **Search**. Once the service displays, click **OK**.

Select a Provider	rovider Number		
Name		ProviderNumber	
Speech-Language Pathologis	t		
Speech-Language Pathologis	t Assistant		

- Check the *Needs Supervision* box if this employee needs a supervisor to oversee his/her billing entries.
- Enter the licensure/credential dates in the *Begin Date* and *End Date*.

Note: The date fields are not required. These fields are used as a reference point only.

- Staff Provider Type Properties	
Provider Type     Speech-Language Patholo	Needs Supervision
Begin Date 01/01/2007	End Date 01/01/2009
Record will be Changed	OK Cancel

- Click **OK** to save entries on this screen.
- The screen below displays a service that was set up for an employee.

	Staff Provider Types	
Change Delete	Name Speech-Language Pathologist	ProviderNumber

• A security group may be set for those individuals who only need to work with the Medicaid feature in STISETSWeb. Add the Medicaid menu items in *Edit Permission* for this group. For more information on setting up security groups, see the section "Security Desktop" on page 46.

Note: If the employee is licensed/credentialed for multiple services, click **Insert** and repeat the steps above as needed to enter all services. Only those employees who have at least one Provider Type set up will be allowed to enter Tasks, and employees may only enter Tasks for their particular Service(s) entered.

## **Student Diagnosis**

A student's diagnosis should be set up before services are entered, if the diagnosis is to be auto-displayed in the *Service Task* screen. To enter a student's diagnosis, follow these steps:

- Select the student.
- Go to Student Desktop | Student Diagnosis.

Stu	dent Diagnos	sis		min res max
Insert	Code	Name	Description	Diagnosis Date
Delete				

- Click **Insert** to add a diagnosis.
- Click on the **Ellipsis** button to display a search window, and then enter the name of the diagnosis. After the appropriate diagnosis is highlighted click **OK**.
- Enter the *Diagnosis Date* and then click **OK**.

•Diagnosis Date MM/dd/yyyy
OK Cancel

Note: A diagnosis may also be added in the task at the time of entry.

#### **Services**

Services must be entered prior to entering tasks. This is done when on the *Goals* page of the IEP is created. Click on the **Click Here for Services** link on the form or click on the **Services** link below the student demographic information when the Goal form is open. See screen shot below.

ADJ	USTED, MAL						min res max 🔨
Selecte Student Nar ADJUSTED, Special Edu Active Homeroom 301 Exceptional SLI	d Student me Student MAL 55600 cation Status Date o Tuesd Entry/ ENT: 6 ity LEA 777	nt ID 0000 f Birth ay, November 01, 1994 Withdrawal Date N24/2005 / WD:	School Nar ALABAMA Age 13 Gender M LEP N/A	ne . K-12 SCHOOL	(123) A Gi 5 Ra V M N	S Status ACTIVE rade ace V igrant WA	Lookup
	Record of Access Student Progress Services 😪						
Proc	esses for Selec	ted Student					min res max
Insert	Name	Description	Close Date	Open Forms	Missing Forms	Has Annotatio	ns Is Closable
Delete	Reevaluation for IEP Changes	Reevaluation for IEP Changes		2			
Deactivate	ECEC	ECEC		1	0		
Complete	Referral Process	Referral Process		2	0		
Forms	IEP Process	IEP Process		5	0		
	Post-School Transition	Post-School Transition		1	0		

Note: Most services are entered at the time the student's IEP is written.

The steps for entering services are as follows:

- Select the student.
- Go to Student Desktop | Process Manager.
- Double-click on the process with the appropriate IEP or highlight the process and click on the **Forms** button.
- Select the *IEP Goals* page.

<	ADJUST	D, MAL			min res max
	IEP Process (4 IEP Annual G	11/2008) als			min res max
	File Edit Save				
	RESIZE Notice Of Propose	INDIVIDUALIZ	E D E D U C A T I O N P R O G R A M		<u>^</u>
	Special Education	UDENT'S NAME: MAL ADJUSTED			
	IEP Transition Page IEP Annual Goals	EA: Math			
	benchmarks IEP Signature Pag	RESENT LEVEL OF ACADEMIC ACH	EVEMENT AND FUNCTIONAL PERF	ORMANCE:	
	Student Assessn LEP-ELL Participa			×	
=	Persons Respons	EASURABLE ANNUAL GOAL related	to meeting the student's needs: <u>A</u>	L Learning Exchange	≡
-	Notice Of Intent R Notice and Conse				
	1	YPE(S) OF EVALUATION FOR ANNUA	L GOAL:		

• Scroll down to click on the **Click Here for Services** link.

	IEP Process	(4/1	1/2008)	min res max
	IEP Annual	Goa	ls	
	File Edit Save			
1	RESIZE	<b>**</b>	E(5) OF EVALUATION FOR ALL CALL GOAL.	<u>~</u>
	Notice Of Propos		Chargen by Racad According Tancher Tart Tart Internation Grader	
111	Special Education	11=		
	IEP Transition Pa		Data ConectionState Assessment(s) /Work Samples	
11	IEP Annual Goals		Other:	
	EP Signature Par		Other	
	Student Assess			
	LEP-ELL Participa	DA	TE OF MASTERY: MM/dd/yyyy	
1111	Persons Respon	BE	NCHMARKS:	
크	Notice Of Intent F	1.	MM/dd/yyyy	
	Notice and Cons-	d	Date of Mastery	
		2.	MM/dd/yyyy	
			Date of Mastery	
		3	~ MM/dd/vvvv	
1222		Ľ.	Date of Mastery	
1000			NM/dd/saas	
		4.	Date of Mastery	
3				
		SPI	CIAL EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICE(S): (Special Education, Supplementary Aids and Services,	
		Prop	gram Modifications, Accommodations Needed for Assessments, Related Services, Assistive Technology, and Support	
		for 1	Personnel.)	
1				
-				
v			Click Here for Services	
				~
1.1.1				

• The *Student Services* screen will display.

	Student Services							
Special Education (0)	Supplementary Aids and Services (0)	Program Modifications (0)	Accommodations Needed for Assessments (0)	Related Services (0)	Assistive Technology (0)	Support for Personne (0)	Screening / Evaluations (0)	
Enter spo Impairme Services	Enter speech or language services here for students whose Area of Disability is Speech and Language Impairment, as documented on the most recent Notice and Eligibility Decision Regarding Special Education Services.							
Change	Service Ty Description	ype on	Begin En Date Da	d Fr te	equency	Closed At G	tached to bal	Attach/Detach
Delete								

- At the top of the screen, select a category for which a service is to be entered and then click the **Insert** button.
- The *Service Properties* screen will display, featuring several fields for entering service information. The sample screen shot below displayed when the Related Services category was selected.

- Service Propertie	e (Polated S	envices)			
IED Begin Date	s (Related 3	IEP End Date			
08/01/2007	1	07/31/2008			
Service Type	l				
• Service Type		~			
Anticipated Frequency:					
Frequency		Frequency Type			
	times	~			
Amount of Time (Minut	es)		1		
Beginning Date	1	•Ending Date	+Locati	on	
MM/dd/yyyy		MM/dd/yyyy			*
Service Details	·				
					1
Record will be Added				ОК	Cancel
Necora mil De Addea					

- *IEP Begin Date* and *IEP End Date* populate from the *Profile* page.
- Click in the drop-down box to enter the *Service Type*.
- Enter the *Frequency* (the number of times the *Frequency Type* will occur).
- Click in the drop-down box to enter the *Service Frequency Type*.
- Enter the *Amount of Time* for the service (minutes).
- Enter the *Beginning Date and Ending Date* for the service.
- Click in the drop-down box to enter the *Location* of the service. If the location is not available in the list, an administrator may add it under **Utilities | Code Desktop**.
- Click in the text box to enter the *Service Details*.
- Click **OK** to save the entries.
- If the student has more than one service, repeat the steps above.

Note: When a service is inserted for one goal in a process, it will display for any other goal in that same process. This simplifies data when the service in question is needed for other goals. The user may simply click the **Attach/Detach** button in the service that was already created for the first Goal. See screen shot below.

Student Services										
Special S Education (0)	Supplementary Aids and Services (0)	Program Modifications (0)	Accommod Needed for Assessme (0)	lations r Rela ints Ser (1)	ated vices	Assistiv Technol (0)	/e logy	Support for Personne (0)	Screeni Evaluati (0)	ng / ons
Do <u>NOT</u> en Impairmen Services.	Do <u>NOT</u> enter speech or language services here for students whose Area of Disability is Speech and Language Impairment, as documented on the most recent Notice and Eligibility Decision Regarding Special Education Services. For these students, enter speech or language services in the Special Education section.									
Insert	Service Ty Descriptio	/pe on	Begin Date	End Date	Free	quency	Clos	sed Atta	ched to Goal	Attach/Detach
Delete	Speech/Lar Services	nguage I	01/01/2007	02/02/2008	Wee	kły				Attach/Detach

## **Using Medicaid Desktop and Service Task Entry**

In the Medicaid Desktop, the user will find the **Service Log**, **Billing Providers**, **Medicaid Reports**, and **Screening/Evaluations**. Service tasks will be entered using the *Service Log* menu or the *Screening/Evaluations* menu.



## Service Log

This area is used to enter Service Tasks on Services that are in the student's IEP.

The *Service Log* screen provides several options to search for students for whom Service Tasks are to be entered. In the screen shot below, the search is on the Service Type of *Speech Therapy*. All students (last names starting with *B*) who have that Service Type are displayed in the list in the middle of the screen.

Other search options are:

- **School**: Narrow the search by using the drop-down list to select one or more schools in which to search.
- **Service Type**: This is a list of all of the service types listed in the IEP. To enter service tasks for one type of service, make selections from this list.
- **Grade**: Use this search parameter to enter service tasks for students in a specific grade level.
- **<u>Student Number</u>**: Use this field to search for a student by Student Number.
- **Last Name**: Search for a student by Last Name.

• **First Name**: Search for a student by First Name.

Any combination of these search fields may be used to locate specific students.

- **<u>Students with Tasks</u>**: Check this box to search for all students for whom service tasks have been entered.
- **<u>Completed Services Only</u>**: Check this box to search for services that have been marked complete. This will search for the service, NOT the service task.

Serv	ice Log							min res ma
Find Student Services         Students with Tasks       Completed Services Only       School       Service Type         Image: Student Number       Image: Service Services       Image: Service Services       Image: Service Services         Grade       Student Number       Last Name       First Name							~	
Taska	Student #	Student Name	Grade	Classification	Servic	e Type	Regin Date	Search End Date
Close	222222229	JOHANN BACH	7	Related Services	Speec	h/Language Services	10/10/2006	10/09/2007
Close	222222229	JOHANN BACH	7	Related Services	Speeci	h/Language Services	10/10/2006	10/09/2007
	20000007	CLARA BARTON	8	Related Services	Speech	h/Language Services	01/08/2007	01/07/2008
	22000000	LUDWIG BEETHOVEN	98	Special Education	Speech	h/Language Services	01/21/2006	02/21/2006
ļ	222222229	JOHANN BACH	7	Special Education	Speech	h/Language Services	05/21/2006	05/20/2007
	120000012	PAULINE BLANKENSHIP	7	Special Education	Speech	h/Language Services	10/01/2006	12/01/2006

## **Entering Service Tasks**

After the student has been located, click on his/her name in the list with the Service Type for which tasks are to be entered. Note that the student may display more than once in the list if he/she receives more than one Service.

- Highlight the service and then click on the **Tasks** button.
- Click **Insert** to enter a new task.

Note: If Services have already been entered for the student, Service Tasks will appear as shown below. If no tasks have been entered, the screen will be blank.

Service Tasks - CHRISTINA APPLEGATE							
Service Inf	ormation – Be	gin Date	End Date 7/31/2006	Frequency	Closed		
Change Delete	Date 02/07/2008	Begin Time 08:00 AM	End Time 09:00 AM	Omit from billing	Closed		
Complete T-shoot							

• The Service Task Properties screen will appear.

Service Task Properties - CHR		
-I Performed this Task		
•Date	•Begin Time	•End Time
04/15/2008	08:00 AM	MA 00:00
Student Unavailable		
Notes		
Enter notes here		8
Student Diagnosis Alexia and Dyslexia: Alexi		
Procedure Type		×
Location	Service Provided by	Supervision Provided by
Resource Room	CHARLES BALLARD	
Omit from billing	Omit Reason	
		~
		×
		OK Cancel
Report will be Added		

- **Date**: Enter the date of service task. This field will automatically be populated with the current date. The date entered should be within the Service begin and end dates.
- **Begin Time**: Time at which task began.
- **End Time**: Time at which task ended.
- **Notes**: Medicaid recommends that therapists follow the *SOAP* method for recording service/progress notes. The letters *SOAP* outline the four parts of documentation:
  - Subjective comment
  - Objective or goal
  - o Assessment
  - Plan (either Continue, Add or Delete)
- <u>Student Diagnosis</u>: The student diagnosis must be entered before the user may enter the Procedure Type. Some Procedures require mandated Diagnosis or ICD-9 Codes (per the Alabama State Manual) and those codes are listed below. Only speech therapists, occupational therapists, and physical therapists will need to choose the diagnosis code. All other procedures require mandatory codes as follows:

Service/Procedure Descriptions	ICD9 Code	ICD9 Description
Behavioral Health Counseling	V62.9	Unspecified Psychosocial Circumstance
Developmental Diagnostic Assessment	V62.9	Unspecified Psychosocial Circumstance
Health Aide Services	V65.49	Other Specified Counseling
Hearing Screen	V72.1	Examination of Ears and Hearing
Intake/Evaluation	V62.9	Unspecified Psychosocial Circumstance
Tympanometry (Impedance Testing)	V72.1	Examination of Ears and Hearing
Vision Screen	V72.0	Examination of Eyes and Vision

- To enter the Diagnosis for the student, click the **Ellipsis** button next to *Student Diagnosis*. Type in the Diagnosis name or code and click **Search**.
- Select (highlight) the Diagnosis and click **OK**.
- **Procedure Type**: This is a drop-down box. Choose the Procedure Type that matches the service provided.
- **Location**: This is a drop-down box. Choose the location that indicates where the service was performed.
- **Service Provided By**: This field defaults to the user logged in the program or who is entering the task. If this user is entering tasks on behalf of another, click the **Ellipsis** button to select the actual Service Provider.
- <u>Supervisor Provided By</u>: If the Service Provider requires supervision, click on the **Ellipsis** button and perform a search to select the Supervisor.
- <u>Omit from billing</u>: Check this box to exclude this task from submission for Medicaid billing.
- **Omit Reason**: Enter the reason the task will be omitted from the Medicaid billing.
- Click **OK** to save the entry.
| Servic                                  | e Tasks                | - CHRISTI              |                       | GATE              |        |
|---|------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|--------|
| Service Info                            | rmation—<br>Beg<br>8/1 | gin Date               | End Date<br>7/31/2006 | Frequency<br>1    | Closed |
| Change<br>Delete<br>Complete<br>T-shoot | Date<br>02/07/2008     | Begin Time<br>08:00 AM | End Time<br>09:00 AM  | Omit from billing | Closed |

- **<u>Complete</u>**: Mark the task complete after all data has been entered. Only those tasks marked as complete will be billed to Medicaid.
- **<u>T-Shoot</u>**: This screen displays errors possible errors that would prevent the task from being Medicaid-billable. Any line in red is an error that should be corrected before the task can be billed.

Status
Yes
No - Check "Student Diagnosis" on the service task
No - Check "End Time"
Yes
No - Check "Closed"

# **Billing Providers**

This screen displays a list of allowable Medicaid Billing Providers and numbers for the system. Users should not change this list of provider numbers.

	Gum	ıp, Forest							min res	max	-
St G Sµ A Ho K Ex	Selecte tudent Har Jump, Fore pecial Edu Active omeroom (01 (ceptional	ed Student me st cation Status ity	Student ID 81111111 Date of Birth Friday, January 15, 1999 Entry / Withdrawal Date ENT: 7/1/2005 /WD: LEA 999	School Alabar Age 6 Gender M	Name na K-12 School (0123)	S G R	IS Status ACTIVE rade I ace N	L	iokup		
			Rec	ord of Access					Serv	ices	
	Med	icaid Billing	Providers						min res	max	
	Insert	Provider		Medicaid ID	Place of Service	Address	Address 2	City	State	Zip	İ
	Change	Audiology   STI COUN	ITY SCHOOLS	020999000	11				AL		
	Delete	Occupational Therap	y   STI COUNTY SCHOOLS	068999000	11				AL		
	Delete	Physical Therapy   S1	I COUNTY SCHOOLS	065999000	11				AL		
		Rehab	SCHOOLS	089999000	11				AL		
		Speech Therapy   ST	SCHOOLS	052999000	11				AL		
			SCHOOLS	022999000	11				AL		

# **Medicaid Reports**

In this area, there are several reports available to help manage Medicaid billing claims. The *Medicaid Submission Compliance* report may be very helpful in resolving errors that prevent tasks from being billed.

Medicaid Report Deskto	q	min res max
Report Name           Medicaid Student Report           Medicaid Submission Compliance           Medicaid Submission Compliance Summary           Service Log           Service Provider Log           Service Types Available from a Service Provider	Options School Active Students Only V Output Format PDF	Print

# **Screening / Evaluations**

If a vision/hearing screening or an evaluation (i.e., *Developmental Diagnostic Assessment*) is provided for a student and is not documented on the IEP, a separate process may be used to document these for Medicaid purposes. These screenings are allowed, provided that the student ultimately has an IEP in place.

**Important Tip:** Hearing and Vision Screens have mandatory codes as shown below. Make sure these codes are used when the Screening/Evaluation information is entered. In addition, the Service Provider/Clinician must be set up as eligible to perform a hearing or vision screening.

Service/Procedure Description	ICD9 Code	ICD9 Description
Hearing Screen	V72.1	Examination of Ears and Hearing
Vision Screen	V72.0	Examination of Eyes and Vision

Follow these steps to enter tasks for Screenings or Evaluations:

- <u>Select a Student</u>: First select the student for whom the task is to be entered. Go to the *Select a Student* menu to search for the student. If the student is included in the user's caseload, double-click on the student listed on the User Desktop.
- <u>Screenings and Evaluations</u>: From the Medicaid Desktop, click on Screenings/Evaluations.

SETS min res max	ADJUSTED, M	AL		min res	max 🛆
System Administrator ALABAMA DISTRICT Logout User Desitop Select a Student Alert Subscriptions Student Desitop Utilites Desitop Child Court Desitop Service Log Service Log	- Selected Student- Student Name ADJUSTED, MAL Special Education Status Active Homeroom 301 Exceptionality SLI Screen	Student ID 55600000 Date of Birth Tuesday, November 01, 1994 Entry /Windrawal Date ENT: 824/2005 / WD: LEA 777 Record of Access ing / Evaluations	School Name ALABAMA K-12 SCHOOL (123) Age 13 Gender M LEP N/A	SIS Status ACTIVE Grade 5 Race W Migrant N/A Student Progress Service	
Billing Providers Medical Reports Screening / Evaluations Help ≪F1> Download Adobe Reader	Change Delete Re-Open	gin Time End Time	Omit from billing	Closed	

• To enter a task click on **Insert**.

I Performed this Screening/Evaluation         +Dat       +Begin Time       +End Time         04/15/2008       08:00 AM       09:00 AM         Student Unavailable       09:00 AM       19:00 AM         Notes       Independent of the second of the sec	
+Date       +Begin Time       +End Time         [041152008]       08:00 AM       09:00 AM         Student Unavailable       09:00 AM       09:00 AM         Notes       Notes       109:00 AM         Type notes here       9       9         Student Diagnosis       Bindness and low vision,       9         Procedure Type       97110 S£ Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ani ♥         Location       • Service Provided by       Supervision Provided by         Vision Lab       ♥       System Administrator       ●	~
04/15/2008     08:00 AM     09:00 AM       Student Unavailable     Image: Constraint of the second secon	<
Student Unavailable         Notes         Type notes here         Student Diagnosis         Blindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ant vision         Location       + Service Provided by         Vision Lab       System Administrator	<u> </u>
Notes         Type notes here         Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         S7110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ani v         Location       *Service Provided by         Vision Lab       System Administrator	<
Notes         Type notes here         Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ani victocation         Voision Lab       System Administrator	
Type notes here         Student Diagnosis         Blindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ant vision         Location       + Service Provided by         Vision Lab       System Administrator	~
Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion and vision         27110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion and vision         Vision Lab       System Administrator	
Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision, []         Procedure Type         S7110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion and vision         Location       *Service Provided by         Vision Lab       System Administrator	
Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion and vision         Cocation         Vision Lab         System Administrator	
Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ant vision         Location       + Service Provided by         Vision Lab       System Administrator	
Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ant vision         27110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ant vision         Vocation       + Service Provided by         Vision Lab       System Administrator	
Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion and vision         Location         Vision Lab         System Administrator	
Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision;         Procedure Type         (97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ant vision         Location         Vision Lab         Vision Lab    System Administrator	
Student Diagnosis         Bindness and low vision,         Procedure Type         97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion an vision         Location         Vision Lab         System Administrator	$\sim$
Bindness and low vision, []         Procedure Type         \$97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion and vision         Location         Vision Lab         System Administrator    Supervision Provided by	
Procedure Type           97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion ani v           Location              • Service Provided by            Vision Lab              • System Administrator             …	
97110 SE Therapeutic procedure(s); therapeutic exercises to develop strength and endurance, range of motion and values       Location     *Service Provided by       Vision Lab     System Administrator	
Location + Service Provided by Supervision Provided by System Administrator	
Vision Lab System Administrator	
Omit from billing Omit Reason	
	~
	~
	>
ОК Саг	>

- **Date**: Enter the date of service. This field will automatically fill to the current date.
- o **Begin Time**: Time Service began
- o **End Time:** Time Service ended
- **Notes:** Medicaid recommends that therapists follow the *SOAP* method for recording service/progress notes. The letters *SOAP* outline the four parts of documentation:
- o **<u>Student Diagnosis</u>**: Enter the student's diagnosis for this task.
- **Procedure Type**: This is a drop-down box. Choose the Procedure Type that matches the service provided.
- **Location**: This is a drop-down box. Choose the location that indicates where the service was performed.
- Service Provided By: This field defaults to the user who is logged into the program or who is entering the task. If the tasks are being entered on behalf of another individual, click the Ellipsis button to search for the service provider.
- **Supervisor Provided By:** If the Service Provider needs supervision, click on the **Ellipsis** button, do a search and then enter the Supervisor in this field.
- **Omit from billing**: Check this box if this task should not be submitted for Medicaid billing.
- **Omit Reason**: Enter the reason the task will be omitted from the Medicaid billing.
- $\circ$  Click **OK** to save the entry.

<u>Note</u>: Tasks for Screening and Evaluations may be entered at any time. These tasks will not become billable until the student has an IEP. To make these tasks billable, the user must attach them to an IEP. Go to the service screen in the IEP, click on the last tab (*Screenings / Evaluations*) and then click the **Attach/Detach** button.

# Index

# Α

About Child Count 84 About STISETSWeb 1 About Utility Desktop 38 Accessing the Program via the Web 3 Alert Output 12 Alert Subscriptions (Teachers) 10 Alert Templates (Administrators and Managers) 67 Assessment Setup 46

#### В

Basic Tab 14 Billing Providers 104 Building Reports in SETS Query 76

## С

Caseload Assignment 55 Change Case Manager 23 Child Count Desktop 84 Child Count Error Report 84 Code Desktop 41 Completing Forms 32 Create Student Folder 54 Critical Student Information 63

#### D

Delete a Student 60 Desktop Overview 5 Diagnosis Type Codes 42 District Codes & State Codes 41 Documents 32

#### Ε

Edit Permissions 51 Edit Student's Snap Shot 89 Editing Child Count 89 Effective Permissions 51 Employees 38 Entering Service Tasks 100 Error Codes 86 Exit/Archive Students 61 Exporting Child Count 87

## G

Gifted Tab in Student Folder 21 Groups 46

#### Н

How STISETSWeb Works 1

## I

Introduction 1

## L

Location Type Codes 42 Logging In 3 Lookup 6

#### М

Mass-assign 60 Medicaid Desktop 92 Medicaid Reports 104 Menu Tree 8

## 0

Opening Screen 4 Other Tab in Student Folder 18

#### Ρ

Predefined User Groups List 47 Preschool Tab in Student Folder 20 Procedure Type Cross Reference 44 Procedure Types 43 Process Desktop 53 Process Manager 24 Process Timeline 83 Progress Periods 64

## R

Record of Access 6 Relationship 5 Report Desktop 69 Reports 69 Reports (Caseload) 33

#### S

Sample SETS Query Reports 76 Screening / Evaluations 104 Searching and Modifying Employee Information 38 Security Desktop 46 Selecting a Student 8 Service Frequency Types 44 Service Log 99 Service Type Codes 43 Service Type Cross Reference 45 Services 7, 95 SETS Query & SETS Query (Caseload) 71 Setting Up the Medicaid Feature 92 Snapshot Administration 88 STIOffice Info 33 Student Desktop 14 Student Diagnosis 34, 95 Student Folder 14 Student Information 6 Student List 88 Student Maintenance 60 Student Progress 7, 35 Student Search Criteria 8 Student Search Instructions 9 Student Services 35 Student Services Screen 29 Supplemental Data 69 System Files 56 System Requirements 2

#### U

Un-Archive Students 63 User Desktop 5 Users Menu 48 Using Medicaid Desktop and Service Task Entry 99 Utility Desktop 38

#### W

Working in a Process 25 Working on a Form 27